# DTIC FILE OUPY

Ima City, Florida 32407-5000



# **TECHNICAL MEMORANDUM** NCSC TM 550-90

DECEMBER 1990

# USER'S MANUAL FOR DYNTOCABS

# A FINITE SEGMENT COMPUTER CODE TO SIMULATE THE DYNAMICS OF TOWED CABLE SYSTEMS

J. W. KAMMAN T. C. NGUYEN



· •

Approved for public release; distribution is unlimited.

DESTRUCTION NOTICE For unclassified limited documents, destroy by any method that will prevent disclosure of contents or reconstruction of the document.



эру

25



# NAVAL COASTAL SYSTEMS CENTER

PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA 32407-5000

CAPT D. P. FITCH, USN **Commanding Officer** 

MR. TED C. BUCKLEY Technical Director

#### ADMINISTRATIVE INFORMATION

This report was prepared by the Hydromechanics Branch, Code 2210, of NAVCOASTSYSCEN, in FY 90, in support of the NAVCOASTSYSCEN Mine Countermeasures Exploratory Development, Minesweeping Technology RN15W33, Project No. 22104, Program Element No. 62315N, from the Office of Naval Technology, 235.

Released by E. H. Freeman, Head Advanced Technology Division

Under Authority of D. P. Skinner, Head Research and Technology Department

1

REPORT DC	Form Approved OMB No. 0704-0188		
Public reporting burden for this collectio existing data sources, gathering and ma burden estimate or any other aspect of Directorate for Information Operations ar and Budget, Paperwork Reduction Proje	n of information is estimated to average intaining the data needed, and complet this collection of information, including nd Reports, 1215 Jefferson Davis High ct (0704-0188), Washington, DC 20503	e 1 hour per response, in ing and reviewing the co suggestions for reducin vay, Suite 1204, Arlingto	ncluding the time for reviewing instructions, searching liection of information. Send comments regarding this g this burden, to Washington Headquarters Services n, VA 22202-4302, and to the Office and Managemen
1. AGENCY USE ONLY (Leave blank)	2. REPORT DATE DECEMBER 1	3. REPORT TYP	PE AND DATES COVERED
4. TITLE AND SUBTITLE User's Manual for DYNTO( Simulate the Dynamics of T	CABS - A Finite Segment Co Fowed Cable Systems	omputer Code to	5. FUNDING NUMBERS
J. W. Kamman and T. C. N	lguyen		
7. PERFORMING ORGANIZATION NAI	ME(S) AND ADDRESS(ES)		8. PERFORMING ORGANIZATION REPORT NUMBER
Naval Coastal Systems Ce Code 2210 Panama City, Florida 3240	nter 7-5000		NCSC TM 550-90
9. SPONSORING/MONITORING AGENCY NAME(S) AND ADDRESS(ES)			10. SPONSORING/MONITORING AGENCY REPORT NUMBER
11. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES			
12a. DISTRIBUTION/AVAILABILITY ST	ATEMENT		12b. DISTRIBUTION CODE
Approved for public release	e; distribution is unlimited.		
1	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	. <del>-</del> 1	
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
This report presnets a Use Systems). The program is	' er's Manual for the compute designed to predict steady	r program DYNT	OCABS (DYNamics of TOwed CABle
motions of submerged and cable or a branched system with a towed sphere or a to	partially submerged towed m of cables, but no closed I wed vehicle.	-state configuration systems. These soops may be forr	ons, and linear and nonlinear dynamic systems may consist of a single towing ned. Each branch may be terminated
motions of submerged and cable or a branched system with a towed sphere or a to This manual provides instant input and output data.	partially submerged towed m of cables, but no closed l wed vehicle. ruction for using DYNTOCA	-state configuration systems. These soops may be forr 3S to study such c	ons, and linear and nonlinear dynamic systems may consist of a single towing ned. Each branch may be terminated cable systems. It also provides sample
motions of submerged and cable or a branched system with a towed sphere or a to This manual provides insta input and output data.	partially submerged towed m of cables, but no closed I owed vehicle. ruction for using DYNTOCA	-state configuration systems. These soops may be forr BS to study such o	ons, and linear and nonlinear dynamic systems may consist of a single towing ned. Each branch may be terminated cable systems. It also provides sample
motions of submerged and cable or a branched system with a towed sphere or a to This manual provides insta- input and output data.	partially submerged towed m of cables, but no closed i bwed vehicle. ruction for using DYNTOCA	-state configuration systems. These soops may be forr 3S to study such o	ons, and linear and nonlinear dynamic systems may consist of a single towing ned. Each branch may be terminated cable systems. It also provides sample
motions of submerged and cable or a branched system with a towed sphere or a to This manual provides insta input and output data.	partially submerged towed m of cables, but no closed I wed vehicle. ruction for using DYNTOCA	-state configuration systems. These stoops may be forr BS to study such o	ons, and linear and nonlinear dynamic systems may consist of a single towing ned. Each branch may be terminated cable systems. It also provides sample 15. NUMBER OF PAGES
motions of submerged and cable or a branched system with a towed sphere or a to This manual provides insts input and output data.	Cables; DYNTOCABS Co oefficients; Towed Vehicles	mputer Program; Steady State	Drs., and linear and nonlinear dynamic systems may consist of a single towing ned. Each branch may be terminated         cable systems. It also provides sample         15. NUMBER OF PAGES         User       74
motions of submerged and cable or a branched system with a towed sphere or a to This manual provides insts input and output data.	Cables; DYNTOCABS Co oefficients; Towed Vehicles	nputer Program;	User 74
motions of submerged and cable or a branched system with a towed sphere or a to This manual provides insts input and output data. 14. SUBJECT TERM9 Cable Dynamics; Towed Manuals; Hydrodynamic C	Cables; DYNTOCABS Co oefficients; Towed Vehicles 18. SECURITY CLASSIFICATION OF THIS PAGE	nputer Program; Steady State	Ins, and linear and nonlinear dynamic systems may consist of a single towing ned. Each branch may be terminated         Stable systems. It also provides sample         Is. NUMBER OF PAGES         User       74         If. PRICE CODE         IFICATION       20. LIMITATION OF ABSTRACT

1

\_ \_

Prescribed by ANSI Std. Z39-18 298-102

# CONTENTS

.

Page No.	2.
INTRODUCTION1	
CAPABILITIES OF DYNTOCABS	
THEORETICAL BASIS OF DYNTOCABS	
DEFINITIONS OF TERMS	
TOWED SYSTEM MODEL	
CABLE LINK	
REFERENCE LINK AND REFERENCE POINTS	
TOWED VEHICLES	
TOWED SPHERES	
BODY CONNECTION ARRAY4	
MEAN SHIP FRAME, INERTIAL FRAME, AND COORDINATE SYSTEMS4	
ACCELERATION PROFILES	
PRECODED FUNCTIONS	
FLUID VELOCITIES	
LINK ORIENTATION ANGLES6	
TOWED VEHICLE ORIENTATION ANGLES	
INITIAL CABLE AND TOWED VEHICLE CONFIGURATION	
LINK WEIGHT, BUOYANCY, LENGTH, AND DIAMETER6	
TOWED SPHERE PHYSICAL DATA	
TOWED VEHICLE PHYSICAL DATA7	
FLUID FORCES ON CABLE LINKS7	
FLUID FORCES ON TOWED SPHERES9	

# **CONTENTS** (continued)

Page No.
FLUID FORCES ON TOWED VEHICLES10
CLOSED LOOP CONTROL LAW11
ACTUATOR MODEL11
SENSOR NOISE11
WEIGHT FORCES
UNITS
LABELS12
EQUATIONS OF MOTION AND STEADY-STATE EQUILIBRIUM
DEVIATIONS OF EXTERNAL INPUTS AND LINEAR SYSTEM DYNAMICS 14
INPUT DATA15
HEADING OR TITLE
OPTIONS
NUMBER OF LINKS
INDIVIDUAL LINK DATA
NUMBER OF TOWED SPHERES
INDIVIDUAL TOWED SPHERE DATA
NUMBER OF TOWED VEHICLES
INDIVIDUAL TOWED VEHICLE DATA
SYSTEM CONTROL LAW GAIN MATRICES
MOTION OF THE MEAN SHIP FRAME AND SYSTEM REFERENCE POINT27
INTEGRATION OPTION AND PARAMETERS

#### CONTENTS (continued)

	<u>Page No.</u>
CONTROL LAW SAMPLING TIME	
OUTPUT OPTIONS	
EXAMPLE INPUT DATA	31
EXAMPLE OUTPUT	35
REFERENCES	
APPENDIX A SUMMARY OF INPUT DATA REQUIREMENTS	A-1
APPENDIX B HYDRODYNAMIC LOADS ON TOWED VEHICLES	B-1

#### **ILLUSTRATIONS**

Figure No.	. Ender State Stat	age No.
1	Typical Multiple Branched Towed System	39
2	A Simple Mooring System	39
3	A Finite-Segment Model of a Cable	40
4	A Finite-Segment Towed System Model	40
5	Reference Link, Reference Points, and Towed Vehicles	41
6	Numbering of the Towed System Model of Figures 4 and 5	41
7	Inertial Frame, Mean Ship Frame, and Towed System Model	42
8	Acceleration Profile Approximation	42
9	Orientation Angles for Cable Links	43
10	Orientation Angles for Towed Vehicles	44
11	Zero Initial Configuration of a Single Branched System	46
12	Typical Vehicle with Position Vectors and Axes	46
13	Tangential Drag Coefficients for Various Surface Roughnesses	47
14	Typical Vehicle with Control Surfaces	48
15	Segmented Model of Example Towed System	49
16	Angular Acceleration Profile for Mean Ship Frame	49

iv

	Acce	ssion For			
	NTIS GRA&I				
	By Distr Avai	ibution/			
	D1st	Avail and Special	/or		

#### INTRODUCTION

This is a User's Manual for the computer program DYNTOCABS (DYNamic analysis of TOwed CABle Systems). The program is designed for analysis of the three-dimensional steady-state configurations and linear and nonlinear dynamics of submerged and partially submerged towed systems. The system may consist of a single towing cable or a branched system of cables. Each cable branch is usually terminated with a towed sphere or towed vehicle, but this is not a requirement. Figure 1 shows an illustration of a typical towed system. The system can, of course, be much simpler than that shown in Figure 1. For example, it could consist of a single cable segment such as a buoy- or balloon-mooring as depicted in Figure 2.

This manual provides instruction for using DYNTOCABS to study these cable systems. It also provides sample input and output data. The language of DYNTOCABS is FORTRAN; all input data are accepted in free-format.

#### CAPABILITIES OF DYNTOCABS

DYNTOCABS is designed to perform three basic types of analysis: 1) a steady-state analysis, 2) a linear dynamic time-domain analysis, and 3) a nonlinear dynamic time-domain analysis. Options are also available that allow execution to begin with a steady-state analysis and continue with either of the dynamic analyses. For a steady-state analysis, the program requires the following: (1) the physical data of the towing cables (weight, buoyancy, diameter, length, etc.) and towed vehicles (weight, length, volume, inertia properties, mass-center location, etc.); (2) the connectivity of the system's branches; (3) the fluid properties; and (4) the motion of the towed end of the cable (steady forward motion or circular turn). DYNTOCABS then calculates the steady-state configuration of the towed system. In addition to items (1)-(3) above, a dynamic analysis requires the motion of the towed end of the cable (steady or unsteady) and the initial configuration of the system. It then computes the kinematics (position, velocity, and acceleration) of the towed system and the cable forces at a set of discrete times over some prescribed time interval.

DYNTOCABS provides the user with the following options:

1. Steady-state and linear and nonlinear time domain analyses may be chosen.

2. Towed vehicles may be included with or without closed-loop control laws or open-loop inputs.

3. Long nonlinear dynamic analysis runs may be restarted from the finishing time of an earlier execution.

4. Either US Customary or metric units may be used.

5. Fluid forces may be applied to the cable system. These forces include:

- a. Normal drag forces
- b. Tangential drag forces
- c. Side (or lift) forces
- d. Buoyancy forces

These forces may be partially or totally neglected by the user.

6. Cable drag forces may be calculated using velocity dependent normal and tangential drag coefficients or by using empirically-determined loading functions.

7. Gravitational forces may be included or neglected.

8. Point loads may be located along the cable.

9. The towed system may be immersed in two fluid media - normally air and water.

10. The fluid media may be given a uniform "stream" velocity.

11. The tow point of the towed system may have arbitrary motion relative to the ship. The ship itself may have arbitrary horizontal plane motion.

In addition to the above options, the user may select numerical integration parameters and certain output options.

#### THEORETICAL BASIS OF DYNTOCABS

The cables in the towed system are modelled by a series of cylindrical links connected in a chain with frictionless spherical joints to simulate a flexible cable. Figure 3 depicts such a model. The masses and fluid and gravitational loads are assumed to be uniformly distributed over each link. These masses and loads are then halved and lumped at the connecting joints. Hence, the links are two-force members, carrying forces only along their length. The spherical towed bodies are assumed to be concentrated masses coincident with the lumped mass of the connecting cable link. The more general towed vehicles are three-dimensional bodies with mass and inertia. They are connected to their adjacent cable links by frictionless spherical joints at some reference point of the vehicle that need not be located at its mass center.

The model of Figure 3 is a lumped-mass, finite-segment model of the cable. References 1 through 3 provide the specific technical details required to formulate the equations of motion of these types of systems. This methodology has shown to yield results quite similar to those provided by the methodology presented in reference 4, but with a substantial increase in execution speed.

The fluid forces on the system are computed using procedures similar to those outlined in references 3 through 12. These include normal and tangential drag forces and side forces for cable links, general hydrodynamic forces for towed vehicles (drag and added mass, based on a set of hydrodynamic coefficients), and buoyancy forces. As previously stated, the cable loads are represented by forces at the connecting joints of the system; the vehicle loads are represented by forces passing through the mass centers of the vehicles together with couples.

Finally, the governing equations are solved using either a fixed-step predictor-corrector or a fourth-order fixed-step Runge-Kutta numerical integration algorithm. DYNTOCABS is written, however, so that other numerical integrators may be implemented.

#### **DEFINITIONS OF TERMS**

The terminology used in DYNTOCABS is defined in this section. These definitions are useful in understanding the input requirements. Bold print is used to further identify terms of interest.

#### 1. TOWED SYSTEM MODEL

Figure 4 shows a finite-segment **towed system model**. It consists of cable links, towed vehicles, and towed spheres connected in a tree-like fashion such that no closed loops are formed.

#### 2. CABLE LINK

A cable link is an individual member of a towed system model (aside from towed vehicles and spheres). A cable link is rigid and is connected to adjacent links and the towed vehicles by frictionless spherical joints.

#### 3. REFERENCE LINK AND REFERENCE POINTS

The uppermost link of the towed system model is called the **system reference link** as shown in Figure 5. The lower end of the system reference link is called the **system reference point** Q. In a typical dynamic configuration of the system, Q is given a prescribed motion relative to the **mean ship frame** (see (7) below).

Also, each of the links and the towed vehicles of the towed system model has its own reference point. For the system reference link, it is Q the system reference point. For any other link L, it is QK the joint location at the lower end of the link. For any towed vehicle V, it is QV the joint location at the cable attach point. See Figure 5.

#### 4. TOWED VEHICLES

DYNTOCABS has the provisions for handling many typical towed bodies at the ends of the branches of the cable system. DYNTOCABS refers to these as **towed vehicles**. These vehicles are connected to their adjacent cable links by a frictionless spherical joint at the reference point of the body. Neither this reference point, the center of buoyancy, nor the hydrodynamic center of the vehicle need be located at its mass center. These vehicles may only be located at the ends of the cable branches.

#### 5. TOWED SPHERES

A towed sphere may be located at any of the connecting joints of the towed system model. Each sphere is considered to be a point source of mass and fluid force; the fluid force is determined from the diameter of the sphere.

#### 6. BODY CONNECTION ARRAY

Cable links, towed vehicles, and towed spheres are all referred to as **bodies** of the towed system model. Corresponding to each body in the system is a unique lower link. This link is defined as the link next in line on the shortest path from that body (along the system's links) to the system reference point. (As this statement suggests, towed spheres are never considered to be lower bodies, even when they are located at intermediate joints within the system.) Corresponding to each link in the model there may also be upper bodies. These upper bodies are defined by moving outward along the model's bodies from the system's reference point to the ends of its branches. The upper bodies of each link are those next in line on these "outward" paths. A link has multiple upper bodies when it precedes a branch point or sphere on these paths and has no upper bodies when it is located at the end of a branch.

The configuration of the towed system model and the arrangement of its branches can be described by a **body connection array**. To develop this array, let the bodies of the system be numbered as follows: First, let the **system reference link** be called link 1. Next, number the remaining links, towed spheres, and towed vehicles in ascending progression away from link 1 through the branches of the system; let the **mean ship frame** be body 0. Figure 6 illustrates this numbering procedure for the cable system of Figures 4 and 5.

Using this numbering scheme, each body is associated with a lower link having a lower body number; this link is called the **lower numbered link**. The array listing the lower numbered links is called the body connection array. For the system shown in Figure 6, this array is:

Link/Sphere/ Towed Vehicle:	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	12	13	14
Body Connection Array:	0	1	2	3	4	5	2	7	8	9	10	11	9	13

Note that the connectivity of the system can be constructed once the body connection array is known. That is, there is an equivalence between the towed system model connectivity and the body connection array.

#### 7. MEAN SHIP FRAME, INERTIAL FRAME, AND COORDINATE SYSTEMS

In DYNTOCABS, the system reference point Q at the lower end of the system reference link may be given arbitrary prescribed motion relative to the mean ship frame, which itself may be given a prescribed motion relative to an inertial reference frame. This is depicted in Figure 7. The mean ship frame is assumed to be rigidly attached to a towing vessel, such as a ship or a helicopter.

Coordinate systems are associated with both the mean ship frame and the inertial frame. In the mean ship frame, the  $X_s$  direction is forward, the  $Y_s$  direction is starboard, and the  $Z_s$ direction is downward. The mean ship frame is assumed to move in a horizontal plane relative to the inertial frame; its position (relative to the inertial frame) is given by the X and Y coordinates of its origin and its orientation is given by a single turning angle  $\psi$  measured as positive when the ship is in a starboard turn. The system reference point Q may have arbitrary motion relative to the mean ship frame.

Finally, DYNTOCABS has the option of locating the fluid interface (or water level) at any distance h below (or above, if h is negative) the mean ship frame.

#### 8. ACCELERATION PROFILES

In a nonlinear time-domain analysis, the specification of the motion of the system reference point Q relative to the mean ship frame and the motion of the mean ship frame relative to the inertial frame (Figure 7) may be accomplished either by using an **acceleration profile**, described here, or by using a **precoded function**, described below.

An acceleration profile is simply a set of data points representing the coordinates of selected points of an acceleration-time curve. Such coordinates may be obtained from the graph of the acceleration function.

DYNTOCABS has the capability of accepting as many as 25 data points from such an acceleration curve. A piecewise linear approximation is then made of the acceleration function. For example, consider the acceleration function approximation shown in Figure 8. The acceleration, velocity, and displacement during the i<sup>th</sup> time interval are then:

$$a = a_i + \left(\frac{a_{i+1} - a_i}{t_{i+1} - t_i}\right)(t - t_i)$$

$$v = v_i + a_i(t - t_i) + \frac{1}{2} \left(\frac{a_{i+1} - a_i}{t_{i+1} - t_i}\right)(t - t_i)^2$$

$$d = d_i + v_i(t - t_i) + \frac{1}{2} a_i(t - t_i)^2 + \frac{1}{6} \left(\frac{a_{i+1} - a_i}{t_{i+1} - t_i}\right)(t - t_i)^3$$

where  $a_i$ ,  $v_i$ ,  $d_i$ , and  $t_i$  are the acceleration, velocity, displacement, and time at the beginning of the i<sup>Th</sup> interval. Thus, the entire kinematic profile (displacement, velocity, and acceleration) is known when the  $a_i$  are given, and when  $v_1$  and  $d_1$ , the initial velocity and displacement (at time  $t_1$ ), are given.

#### 9. PRECODED FUNCTIONS

Depending on the analysis being performed, DYNTOCABS requires the user to specify motions of the system as a function of time. If they take on a relatively simple form, it may be convenient to describe the motion using a **precoded function**. DYNTOCABS provides the user with two different precoded functions for this purpose. The first may be used to describe the displacement of the system reference point Q relative to the mean ship frame (See (7) above); it has the following form:

$$f = f_0 + Ae^{bt} \cos(pt + \phi) \tanh(mt)$$

where  $f_0$ , A, b, p,  $\phi$ , and m are user supplied constants. Note, for example, that this function can be used to provide a constant value and decaying, sinusoidal values. The second form of the precoded function is used to describe the motion of the mean ship frame (See (7) above) and commanded variable inputs in the closed-loop control law (See (20) below); it has the form:

$$f = f_0 + Ae^{bt} \cos(pt + \phi)$$

This function is similar to that function described above, except that it does **not** employ the hyperbolic tangent function.

#### 10. FLUID VELOCITIES

DYNTOCABS also has the provision of allowing each of the fluids to have a uniform (constant in time and space) stream velocity. The default condition is zero velocity for both fluids; the default fluids are air and water.

#### 11. LINK ORIENTATION ANGLES

The orientation of cable link is described relative to the mean ship frame. Specifically, it is defined by two successive right-handed (or dextral) rotations about link fixed axes. First, let x, y, and z represent coordinate axes fixed in the link such that x aligns with the axis of the link. Also, let x, y, and z be initially aligned with the X, Y, and Z axes of the mean ship frame. The link can now be oriented relative to the mean ship frame by two successive right-handed (or dextral) rotations through angles  $\beta$  downward about the y (or Y) axis and  $\gamma$  outward about the z (or Z') axis. Positive  $\beta$  and  $\gamma$  rotations are shown in Figure 9.

#### 12. TOWED VEHICLE ORIENTATION ANGLES

The orientation of a towed vehicle is also described relative to the mean ship frame. Let x, y, and z represent coordinate axes located at the mass-center of the vehicle, such that x points forward (the **axial** direction), y starboard (the **lateral** direction), and z downward (the **normal** direction)<sup>10</sup>. Also, let these axes initially align with the X, Y, and Z axes of the mean ship frame. The orientation of the vehicle relative to the mean ship frame is now given by three successive rotations (in a right-handed or dextral sense) the tagh angles  $\gamma$ ,  $\beta$ , and  $\alpha$  about the vehicle-fixed z, y, and x axes, respectively. These angular rotations are shown in Figure 10.

#### 13. INITIAL CABLE AND TOWED VEHICLE CONFIGURATION

The initial configuration of the cable system before the equations of motion are integrated depends upon the initial values of the orientation angles of the cable links and towed vehicles. For example, if the initial values of all the orientation angles are zero, the initial configuration of a single branched towed system model with a towed vehicle would be as shown in Figure 11.

#### 14. LINK WEIGHT, BUOYANCY, LENGTH. AND DIAMETER

The physical parameters needed by DYNTOCABS to describe the cable links are the weight per unit length (weight density), the buoyant force per unit length, the link length, and the link diameter. These parameters may be different for each cable link; that is, the cable need not be uniform in its physical properties.

#### 15. TOWED SPHERE PHYSICAL DATA

In addition to the link physical parameters, DYNTOCABS requires the physical parameters of the towed spheres. These are simply the sphere weights and diameters.

#### 16. TOWED VEHICLE PHYSICAL DATA

The physical data needed by DYNTOCABS to describe the towed vehicles is somewhat more extensive, since these bodies can have more general shapes. Specifically, the vehicle's weight, axial length, volume, moments and products of inertia, and the mass center, buoyancy center, and hydrodynamic center position vectors are required. The mass moments and products of inertia are those about the aforementioned axial (x), lateral (y), and normal (z) axes fixed at the center of mass. The mass center position vector  $\mathbf{R}_{g}$  is specified by components of the position vector of the mass center of the body relative to the cable point of attachment (the vehicle's reference point). The buoyancy center position vector  $\mathbf{R}_{b}$  and the hydrodynamic center position vector  $\mathbf{R}_{b}$  are specified by components of the position vectors of these points relative to the vehicle's mass center. Components are taken along the body-fixed coordinate axes with negative numbers indicating negative coordinate directions. See Figure 12.

Care should be taken to account for the mass of the enclosed water in vehicles with free-flooded compartments. In this case, choose the weight of the vehicle to be the sum of the weight of the vehicle in air and the weight of the enclosed water; the moments and products of inertia may need modification as well. Then choose the volume of the vehicle as calculated from its outer dimensions to insure that DYNTOCABS uses the correct weight in water.

#### 17. FLUID FORCES ON CABLE LINKS

The total fluid-induced force per unit length along a typical cable link may be represented as follows:

$$f = f_{normal drag} + f_{langential drag} + f_{side load} + f_{added mass} + f_{buoyancy}$$

DYNTOCABS calculates these forces on cable links using either formulae for flow over circular cylinders (default method) or using experimentally determined loading functions. In both cases, normal and tangential drag forces and buoyancy forces may be included. In addition, when loading functions are used, steady side (or lift) forces are also included. At the present time, however, DYNTOCABS does not include added mass forces on the cable links.

The default method for calculation of fluid drag forces resolves the fluid velocity relative to the centroid of the link into components normal and tangent to the link. The drag forces per unit length along the link are then represented as follows:

$$\mathbf{f}_{normal\ drag} = \left(\frac{\rho}{2}\right) d\ C_n \mid \mathbf{v}_n \mid \mathbf{v}_n$$
$$\mathbf{f}_{iangeniual\ drag} = \left(\frac{\rho}{2}\right) \pi\ d\ C_i \mid \mathbf{v}_i \mid \mathbf{v}_i$$

where  $\rho$  is the fluid mass density, *d* is the diameter of the cable link, *C<sub>n</sub>* and *C<sub>i</sub>* are normal and tangential drag coefficients dependent upon corresponding Reynold's numbers of the flow past the cable link. These coefficients are usually determined experimentally. DYNTOCABS calculates the normal drag coefficient using the following formulae<sup>4-69</sup>

$$C_{n} = \begin{cases} 0.0 \quad for \quad Re_{n} \le 0.1 \\ 0.45 + 5.93/(Re_{n})^{0.33} \quad for \quad 0.1 < Re_{n} \le 400.0 \\ 1.27 \quad for \quad 400.0 < Re_{n} \le 10^{5} \\ 0.3 \quad for \quad Re_{n} > 10^{5} \end{cases}$$

where the Reynold's number  $Re_n$  is defined to be

$$Re_n = \rho d |\mathbf{v}_n| / \mu$$

and  $\mu$  is the fluid viscosity. The tangential drag coefficient is calculated using the method presented in Reid and Wilson.<sup>12</sup> Using this method,  $C_i$  can be ca ated as a function of Reynold's number (based on the tangential velocity,  $Re_i = \rho d |\mathbf{v}_i|/\mu$ ) for a given roughness coefficient,  $\lambda$  as shown in Figure 13. The roughness coefficient is defined as the ratio of the equivalent sand roughness of the surface<sup>13</sup> and the cable radius; for a stranded cable,  $\lambda$  may be approximated by comparing the depths of the crevices between major strands of the cable to the radius of the cable.<sup>12</sup> As is evident from its definition,  $0 \le \lambda \le 1$ , the lower limit representing a perfectly smooth cable.

Alternatively, the cable loading is formulated using loading functions.<sup>78</sup> In this method the drag forces per unit length along a link are represented as

$$\mathbf{f}_{normal\ drag} = \left(\frac{\rho}{2}\right) d C_n |\mathbf{v}|^2 f_n \mathbf{n}$$
$$\mathbf{f}_{iangential\ drag} = \left(\frac{\rho}{2}\right) d C_n |\mathbf{v}|^2 f_i \mathbf{t}$$

Note that the normal drag coefficient and the total relative fluid velocity are used in both expressions. The terms  $f_n$  and  $f_i$  are called loading functions and are assumed to be of the form

$$f_n = A_{n0} + A_{n1}\cos(\phi) + B_{n1}\sin(\phi) + A_{n2}\cos(2\phi) + B_{n2}\sin(2\phi)$$
  
$$f_t = A_{n0} + A_{11}\cos(\phi) + B_{11}\sin(\phi) + A_{12}\cos(2\phi) + B_{12}\sin(2\phi)$$

where  $\phi$  is the angle between the cable link and the fluid velocity relative to the mass center of the link. If this drag formulation is employed, the user must provide the values of  $A_{ni}$  (i = 0, 1, 2),  $B_{ni}$  (i = 1, 2),  $A_n$  (i = 0, 1, 2), and  $B_{ni}$  (i = 1, 2) the coefficients of the loading functions and  $C_n$  the drag coefficient. Note that these coefficients are all assumed to be constant, so that their values must be consistent with the Reynold's number range of the specific example of interest.

When loading functions are used, the fluid induced load on a cable link also includes the side (or lift) force often present on stranded cables. As for the drag forces, this force is represented as

$$\mathbf{f}_{side\ load} = \left(\frac{\mathbf{p}}{2}\right) d C_n |\mathbf{v}|^2 f_s \mathbf{s}$$

where, as before,  $f_s$  represents a loading function of the form

$$f_{s} = A_{s0} + A_{s1}\cos(\phi) + B_{s1}\sin(\phi) + A_{s2}\cos(2\phi) + B_{s2}\sin(2\phi)$$

As before, the values of the coefficients of the loading function must be consistent with the Reynold's number range of the specific example of interest.

The buoyant force per unit length due to hydrostatic pressure exerted on a cable link by fluid 2 (usually water) must be provided by the user. This force may be represented as

$$\mathbf{f}_{buoyancy} = \gamma_b \mathbf{k}$$

where  $\gamma_b$  is the buoyant force per unit length in fluid 2 and k is a unit vector pointing vertically upward. DYNTOCABS automatically modifies this force when a link is positioned in fluid 1.

DYNTOCABS calculates the fluid induced load per unit length on each cable link by adding (as vectors) the results from each of these formulae. Assuming these forces are constant over the length of a cable link, the total resultant force is found by multiplying this force per unit length by the link length. Finally, half of the resultant force is applied at each end of the link. For additional information, see reference 3.

#### 18. FLUID FORCES ON TOWED SPHERES

DYNTOCABS has the option of including up to three kinds of fluid forces exerted on the spheres: 1) drag forces, 2) added mass forces, and 3) buoyancy forces. DYNTOCABS replaces this system of forces by a single force passing through the center of the sphere. The resultant force is taken to be of the form:<sup>911</sup>

$$\mathbf{F} = \left(\frac{\rho}{2}\right) d^2 C_D |\mathbf{v}| \mathbf{v} + (\rho/2) V_S C_m \mathbf{a} + (\rho) g V_S \mathbf{k}$$

where v and a represent the velocity and acceleration of the fluid relative to the center of the sphere,  $V_s$  represents the volume of the sphere, d represents the diameter of the sphere, and k represents a unit vector pointing vertically upward.  $C_D$  and  $C_m$  are coefficients dependent on the Reynold's number of the flow past the sphere. These coefficients are usually determined experimentally. DYNTOCABS uses the following values <sup>9</sup>

$$C_{D} = \begin{cases} 0.0 \quad for \quad Re \le 0.1 \\ 0.044 + 13.46/(Re)^{1/2} \quad for \quad 0.1 < Re \le 1000 \\ 0.47 \quad for \quad 1000 < Re \le 10^{5} \\ 0.12 \quad for \quad Re > 10^{5} \\ C_{m} = 1.0 \end{cases}$$

with the Reynold's number Re defined as

#### $Re = \rho d |\mathbf{v}| / \mu$

#### 19. FLUID FORCES ON TOWED VEHICLES

DYNTOCABS has the option of including up to three kinds of fluid forces on the towed vehicles: 1) drag forces, 2) added mass forces, and 3) buoyancy forces. The drag and added mass forces are calculated from a set of 155 hydrodynamic coefficients. The forms of these forces are similar to those presented in reference 10.

Before defining the drag and added mass forces, first consider the typical towed vehicle shown in Figure 14. The directions associated with the vehicle-fixed x, y, and z coordinate axes are called the **axial**, **lateral**, and **normal** directions. u, v, and w represent the axial, lateral, and normal components of the velocity of the mass center of the vehicle, p, q, and r represent the axial, lateral, and normal components of the angular velocity of the vehicle, and  $\delta_r$ , and  $\delta_r$ represent the angular deflections (in radians) of the rudder and sternplane control surfaces.

DYNTOCABS replaces the drag and added mass forces by a single force passing through the **hydrodynamic center** and a corresponding moment. The forms used in the present version of DYNTOCABS to calculate the vehicle-fixed components of the resultant force and moment are given in APPENDIX B. Note that DYNTOCABS has been written so that relatively few changes need be made to the code to incorporate a set of user-defined coefficients which may include the effects of up to four control surfaces. It is assumed that the vehicle undergoes a fully submerged tow.

The buoyancy force on a towed vehicle is calculated as the weight density of water times the volume of the body. This force is assumed to act vertically upward through the vehicle's center of buoyancy.

Finally, since DYNTOCABS assumes that the buoyancy, hydrodynamic, and mass centers of the vehicle do not necessarily coincide, it replaces the buoyancy and hydrodynamic forces and moments with an equivalent force-moment set acting at the mass center.

#### 20. CLOSED-LOOP CONTROL LAW

One way of specifying the values of the control surface deflections (eg. the rudder deflection,  $\delta_{,}$ ) during the course of a simulation is through a user-defined closed-loop control law. Surfaces controlled in this way are called **active control surfaces**; DYNTOCABS allows up to four of these surfaces per vehicle. The hydrodynamic coefficients in the present version of DYNTOCABS define two such surfaces, a rudder and a sternplane.

The control law itself is assumed to be of the form:<sup>14</sup>

$$\{\delta\} = [K_h] \{\delta y\} + [K_l] \{\delta y_l\}$$

where  $\{\delta\}$  represents the vector of deviations of the control surfaces of all the vehicles from their steady-state positions,  $[K_b]$  and  $[K_f]$  represent the system feedback and feed-forward matrices,  $\{\delta y\}$  represents the vector of deviations of the states of all the vehicles from their steady-state values, and  $\{\delta y_c\}$  represents the vector of commanded deviations of all the vehicle angles and depths from their steady-state values. DYNTOCABS allows up to eight state variables per vehicle, its roll, pitch, and yaw angles and rates, and its depth and depth rate. The column vector  $\{\delta\}$  is called the vehicle control surface vector, the column vector  $\{\delta y\}$  is called the vehicle state vector; each of these vectors is formed by concatenating the column vectors of the individual vehicles.

It should be noted here that the open-loop response of a system to imposed control surface deviations may be achieved by setting the entries of  $[K_b]$  the feedback matrix to zero and choosing the entries of  $[K_f]$  the feed-forward matrix and  $\{\delta y_c\}$  the commanded deviation vector to prescribe the control surface deviations as desired.

#### 21. ACTUATOR MODEL

The closed-loop control law (See (20) above) provides instantaneous control surface reactions to deviations in the vehicle states or in the commanded inputs. In a real system, of course, some mechanical actuation system is used. DYNTOCABS provides the user with the option of modeling this actuation system as a second order linear system with position and rate limits and mechanical backlash. To characterize the second order linear system, DYNTOCABS requires the system's natural frequency and damping ratio. The position and rate limits represent the angular limits and angular rate limits of the control surface itself and must be provided in degrees and degrees per second. The backlash represents the amount of angular free-play of the control surface and must also be provided in degrees.

DYNTOCABS first samples the closed-loop control law to determine the commanded deviations in the control surface positions. Using these results, the discretized second order system model with a zero-order hold is sampled; these results are then modified to be consistent with the user-specified position and rate limits and the mechanical backlash.

#### 22. SENSOR NOISE

DYNTOCABS provides the option of adding noise to the value of each of the state variables in the vehicle closed-loop control law (See (20) above). The noise is assumed to be bandlimited white noise. White noise is modeled by a set of Gaussian distributed random

numbers and then bandlimited by digital filtering with a low pass filter. DYNTOCABS requires the standard deviation of the noise and its desired cut-off frequency (Hz.). The mean value of the noise is assumed to be zero.

#### 23. WEIGHT FORCES

The weight forces on the cable links are represented as

 $\mathbf{W} = -\gamma l \mathbf{k}$ 

where  $\gamma$  represents the weight density of the link per unit length, *l* represents the length of the link, and **k** represents a unit vector pointing vertically upward.

Similarly, the weight forces on towed spheres and vehicles may be represented by single forces passing through their mass centers with magnitude equal to their weights.

#### 24. UNITS

DYNTOCABS allows the user to select either U.S. Customary or SI (metric) units for the input and output data. If U.S. Customary units are selected, the units are slugs, feet, and seconds for mass, length, and time; however, inches are used for the link and sphere diameters. If SI (metric) system of units is selected, the units are kilograms, meters, and seconds with centimeters used for link and sphere diameters.

#### 25. LABELS

DYNTOCABS allows the user to arbitrarily label or name the links and towed vehicles and their reference points and the spheres.

# 26. EQUATIONS OF MOTION AND STEADY-STATE EQUILIBRIUM CONFIGURATIONS

In general, the **nonlinear equations of motion** of the towed system model may be expressed in the form:

 $\dot{y}_i = f_i(y_i, u_k)$  (i = 1, ..., 2n; j = 1, ..., 2n; k = 1, ..., m)

where the  $y_j$  (j = 1, ..., n) represent the orientation angles of the cable links and towed vehicles relative to the mean ship frame, the  $y_j$  (j = n + 1, ..., 2n) represent the first derivatives of these angles, the  $u_k$  (k = 1, ..., m) represent **external inputs** (such as motions of the system tow point motion and vehicle control surfaces), and the  $f_i$  (i = 1, ..., 2n), in general, represent nonlinear functions of the  $y_j$  and  $u_k$ . These equations govern the general dynamic motion of the towed system.

During steady forward or steady turning motion and, in the absence of external disturbances, the system can exhibit steady-state equilibrium configurations. In these situations, the orientation angles relative to the mean ship frame remain constant. These angles satisfy the following n nonlinear algebraic equations:

$$f_{n+i}((y_i)_{\epsilon}, (y_{n+i})_{\epsilon} = 0, (u_k)_{\epsilon}) = 0$$
  $(i, j = 1, ..., n)$ 

where the  $(y_j)_e$ ,  $(y_{n+j})_e$ , and  $(u_k)_e$  represent the constant values of the orientation angles, their first time derivatives (equal to zero), and the external inputs corresponding to the equilibrium configuration.

Although these equations could be used to solve for the steady-state angles, DYNTOCABS uses a successive free-body diagram approach to do so. It determines the equilibrium angles of each of the bodies of the system individually as it progresses from the ends of the system's branches toward the system reference point. This process is repeated, using the results of each iteration to seed the next, until the changes in the overal! configuration of the system does not significantly change. Specifically, DYNTOCABS calculates the square root of the sum of the squares of the differences in the calculated steady-state angles from iteration to iteration and insures that value is less than a user-specified tolerance. The user also supplies the maximum number of these system iterations. It should be noted that sufficient system iterations should be allowed to attain the tolerances specified; DYNTOCABS requires a minimum of 6 such iterations. Up to 20-30 may be needed for partially submerged systems or systems undergoing a steady turn.

To describe the motion of the system that results from small disturbances in the  $y_j$  or to the  $u_k$  away from their steady-state values, these equations are **linearized** about the steady-state equilibrium configuration. To this end, introduce the **deviations**  $z_i$  and  $v_k$  so that

$$y_i = (y_i)_{e} + z_i$$
 (*i* = 1,...,2*n*)  
 $u_k = (u_k)_{e} + v_k$  (*k* = 1,...,*m*)

Substituting these values into the nonlinear equations of motion, expanding in a Taylor Series about the equilibrium, and omitting second and higher order terms in the deviations  $z_i$  and  $v_k$  results in the **linear equations of motion** 

$$\dot{z}_i = A_{ij} z_j + B_{ik} v_k$$

where

$$A_{ij} = (\partial f_i / \partial y_j)_e$$
$$B_{ik} = (\partial f_i / \partial u_k)_e$$

The subscript e on the partial derivatives indicates that they are evaluated at the equilibrium configuration. Many of the  $A_{ij}$  and  $B_{ik}$  are easily evaluated; those that are not are approximated using second-order central differences. DYNTOCABS requires a set of **increments** that will be individually applied to the  $y_i$  and  $u_k$  so that these partial derivatives can be calculated. Note that since the steady-state motion is stationary, the  $A_{ij}$  and  $B_{ik}$  are constant throughout the motion.

#### 27. DEVIATIONS OF EXTERNAL INPUTS AND LINEAR SYSTEM DYNAMICS

In a linear dynamic analysis,  $v_i$  represents the **deviations** of the external inputs to the towed system from their steady-state values. Specifically, they represent the deviations of the components along the ship-fixed directions of the position, velocity, and acceleration vectors of the system reference (tow) point relative to the mean-ship frame (9 deviations, 3 for each vector) and the towed vehicle control surface angles (4 deviations for each towed vehicle). The vehicle control surface angles are always considered to be external inputs to the towed system, but DYNTOCABS gives the user the option of excluding the tow point motion.

The actual deviations are not part of the user input, but rather must be calculated in user-supplied subroutines. The deviations of the position, velocity, and acceleration of the system tow point are calculated in SUBROUTINE TPMOTN, and the deviations of the control surface angles of the towed vehicles are calculated in SUBROUTINE CVSPCL. The subroutine statement for these routines must appear as follows:

#### SUBROUTINE TPMOTN (TIME, X0DV, DX0DV, DDX0DV)

#### SUBROUTINE CVSPCL(TIME, DELADV, DELBDV, DELRDV, DELSDV, NTOWB)

where the individual variables in the parameter lists are defined as follows (The values of the variables shown in **bold** print are supplied by DYNTOCABS.):

<u>Variable</u>	Meaning
TIME	Value of time in seconds
NTOWB	Number of towed vehicles
X0DV(I)	The forward, starboard, and downward deviations $(I=1,2,3)$ (ft or meters) of the steady-state position of the system tow point.
DX0DV(I)	The first derivatives (ft/sec or meters/sec) of the deviations $X0DV(I)$ (I=1,2,3).
DDX0DV(I)	The second derivatives ( $ft/sec^2$ or meters/ $sec^2$ ) of the deviations X0DV(I) (I=1,2,3).
DELADV(ITV)	The deviation in radians of the angle of control surface A of towed vehicle "ITV" from its steady-state value.
DELBDV(ITV)	The deviation in radians of the angle of control surface B of towed vehicle "ITV" from its steady-state value
DELRDV(ITV)	The deviation in radians of the rudder angle of towed vehicle "ITV" from its steady-state value

# DELSDV(ITV) The deviation in radians of the sternplane angle of towed vehicle "ITV" from its steady-state value

Note that the order of the deviations of the control surface angles in arrays DELADV, DELBDV, DELRDV, and DELSDV must be the same as the order that the towed bodies appeared in the input data list. Note also that the deviations of the displacements and displacement derivatives of the system tow point are not independent; together they must consistently represent the motion of the tow point away from its steady-state position.

#### INPUT DATA

This part of the manual describes the specific input requirements of DYNTOCABS. The data itself is described in terms of line images, generated by any general-purpose text editor. As noted earlier, DYNTOCABS is written in FORTRAN; hence, the input data is to be submitted in FORTRAN format. Unless otherwise specified, all input is free-format; that is, each data line must contain the necessary data items separated by a comma or one or more spaces. The order of the input data is in the same order as described below. The units of the input data are either English or metric, according to the option selected.

#### HEADING OR TITLE

The first line of input to DYNTOCABS contains a title which may be used to identify the particular data entered. It may contain up to 75 characters, and it will appear at the top of each computer output data page.

#### **OPTIONS**

DYNTOCABS has a number of user options to define the desired analysis. These options are selected by specifying integer values as follows:

1) Analysis: DYNTOCABS allows the user to perform any of five different types of analysis. Enter an integer value between 1 and 5 indicating which type of analysis as follows:

Integer Value	Analysis
1	Linear dynamic analysis
2	Nonlinear dynamic analysis
3	Steady-State analysis (SSA)
4	SSA followed by linear dynamic analysis
5	SSA followed by nonlinear dynamic analysis

2) Closed-Loop control: If the towed system is to include towed vehicles, the user may specify a closed-loop control law for those vehicles. Enter 1 to include closed-loop control for some or all of the towed vehicles. Enter 0 to neglect closed-loop control. Note that DYNTOCABS allows closed-loop control for nonlinear dynamic analyses (options 2 and 5) only.

3) Restart: During each execution, DYNTOCABS records data in a restart file every 50 integration steps. A minimum of data is recorded to reduce the time required for this process; the data includes, for example, the values of the link and vehicle angles necessary for restarting DYNTOCABS at the last recorded time. If the restart option is activated, DYNTOCABS reads the restart file generated by the most recent execution of DYNTOCABS and uses this information to "restart" the present execution at the point when that execution stopped.

An input data file used to restart DYNTOCABS should specify analysis option 2, and the input data format should be consistent with that option. If the initial execution specified analysis option 5, minor modifications are required to that data set. Since DYNTOCABS reads most of the data from the present input data file, it is important that this file be consistent with the input data file from the initial execution.

Enter 1 to read data from a restart file; enter 0 to neglect this option.

4) Units: Enter 1 if U.S. Customary units are desired; enter 2 if metric units are desired.

5) Normal Drag Forces: Enter 1 to include normal drag forces on cable links and total drag forces on spheres and towed vehicles; enter 0 to neglect these forces.

6) Tangential Drag Forces: Enter 1 to include tangential drag forces on cable links and total drag forces on spheres and towed vehicles; enter 0 to neglect these forces.

7) Cable Drag and Side Force (Lift) Formulation: Enter 0 to use the default velocity-dependent coefficients of normal and tangential drag; enter 1 if loading functions are to be used to calculate the drag and side forces on the cable links.

If the default velocity-dependent coefficients are to be used and if tangential drag force are to be included on the cable links, enter the roughness coefficient on the next line. This coefficient should be between 0.0 and 1.0, with 0.0 representing a perfectly smooth cable. See **DEFINITIONS OF TERMS**, Section 17 (FLUID FORCES ON CABLE LINKS).

If loading functions are to be used, the following lines of input-data must also be entered. On the next line, enter the number of different loading function sets (up to three are allowed). For each loading set the following three lines must be entered:

Line 1:	$A_{i0}, A_{i1}, B_{i1}, A_{i2}, \text{ and } B_{i2}$
Line 2:	$A_{n0}, A_{n1}, B_{n1}, A_{n2}, \text{ and } B_{n2}$
Line 3:	$A_{s0}, A_{s1}, B_{s1}, A_{s2}, \text{ and } B_{s2}$

These lines are repeated for each loading function set.

8) Added Mass Forces: Enter 1 to include added mass forces for spheres and vehicles; enter 0 to neglect these forces.

9) Buoyancy Forces: Enter 1 to include these forces; enter 0 to neglect these forces.

10) Gravity Forces: Enter 1 to include these forces; enter 0 to neglect these forces.

11) Point Loads: DYNTOCABS allows the user to enter point loads at the connecting joints between cable links and between cable links and towed vehicles. These loads are assumed to be constant in time and space. Enter 1 to include these forces; enter 0 to neglect these forces. The values of these are part of the link input.

12) Viscosities and Fluid Mass Densities: Enter 0 to use the default values shown in the table below. If values different from these default values are desired, enter 1. Then enter the following four lines of data:

- Line 1: Viscosity of the first fluid (usually air) ( $lb-sec/ft^2$  or  $N-sec/m^2$ )
- Line 2: Mass density of the first fluid  $(slug/ft^3 \text{ or } kg/m^3)$
- Line 3: Viscosity of the second fluid (usually water) ( $lb-sec/ft^2$  or  $N-sec/m^2$ )
- Line 4: Mass density of the second fluid  $(slug/ft^3 \text{ or } kg/m^3)$

#### DEFAULT VALUES FOR FLUID VISCOSITIES AND MASS DENSITIES

	<u>U.S. Customary</u>	Metric
Viscosity (air)	$3.7188 \times 10^{-7}$ (lb-sec)/ft <sup>2</sup>	1.7802 x 10 <sup>-5</sup> (N-sec)/m <sup>2</sup>
Mass Density (air)	2.378 x 10 <sup>-3</sup> slug/ft <sup>3</sup>	1.2252 kg/m³
Viscosity (salt water)	$2.48 \times 10^{-5}$ (lb-sec)/ft <sup>2</sup>	$1.6831 \times 10^{-3}$ (N-sec)/m <sup>2</sup>
Mass Density (salt water)	1.9905 slug/ft <sup>3</sup>	1.0231 x 10 <sup>3</sup> kg/m <sup>3</sup>

13) Fluid Velocities: DYNTOCABS has the option of allowing the fluids to have constant stream velocities in any direction. To use this option, enter 1. Then enter two lines of data providing the X, Y, and Z inertial components of the velocities of the two fluids (fluid 1 on the first line, and fluid 2 on the second line.).

To decline this option, enter 0. This means the fluids will have zero velocity.

14) Fluid Interface Level: DYNTOCABS has the option of allowing the fluid interface level (that is, the water level) to be located at some non-zero vertical distance below the mean ship frame. To use this option, enter 1. Then, on the next line of input, enter the vertical distance (positive downward) from the mean ship frame to the interface.

To decline this option, enter 0. This means the fluid interface and the mean ship frame will be on the same level.

#### NUMBER OF LINKS

Following the input of user options, enter the number of cable links on a single line.

#### INDIVIDUAL LINK DATA

The next input is a series of data describing the physical and geometric properties of each cable link, as follows:

1) Body number. See **DEFINITIONS OF TERMS**, Section 6 (BODY CONNECTION ARRAY).

2) Link label: Any name up to 10 characters in length (A10 format).

3) Link reference point label: Any name up to 10 characters in length (A10 format).

4) Body number of adjacent lower numbered link. See **DEFINITIONS OF TERMS**, Section 6 (BODY CONNECTION ARRAY).

- 5) Link dry weight density per unit length (lb/ft or N/m).
- 6) Link buoyant force (in fluid 2) per unit length (lb/ft or N/m).
- 7) Link length (ft or m).
- 8) Link diameter (in or cm).

9) Point load: If point loads are to be included, enter the inertial X, Y, and Z components of the point load acting on the upper end (the end farthest from the system tow point) of the cable link.

10) Analysis options 1 and 4: If the analysis option has been specified as either 1 (linear dynamic analysis) or 4 (steady-state analysis followed by a linear dynamic analysis), enter the following lines of data (See **DEFINITIONS OF TERMS**, Section 26 (EQUATIONS OF MOTION AND STEADY-STATE EQUILIBRIUM CONFIGURATIONS)):

a) Steady-state configuration of the link: This line contains two numbers representing the steady-state orientation angles of the cable link. For analysis type 1 the correct values must be given, whereas for analysis type 4 only estimates must be provided.

b) Initial deviations from the steady-state configuration: This line contains two numbers representing the deviations of the link orientation angles away from their steady-state values.

c) Initial deviations of the link motion from zero: This line contains two numbers representing the first derivatives of the deviations of the link orientation angles away from zero.

d) Increment of link configuration: This line contains two numbers representing increments in the link orientation angles used for calculating partial derivatives in the linearized equations of motion of the system.

e) Increment of link motion: This line contains two numbers representing increments in the derivatives of the two link orientation angles used for calculating the partial derivatives in the linearized equations of motion of the system.

11) Analysis option 2 with NO closed-loop control: If the analysis option of 2 (nonlinear dynamic analysis) with NO closed-loop control is specified, enter the following lines of data:

a) Initial configuration of the link: This line contains two numbers representing the initial values of the orientation angles of the link. See **DEFINITIONS OF TERMS**, Section 11 (LINK ORIENTATION ANGLES).

b) Initial motion of the link: This line contains two numbers representing the initial values of the first derivatives of the orientation angles of the link.

12) Analysis option 2 with closed-loop control: If the analysis option of 2 (nonlinear dynamic analysis) with closed-loop control is specified, enter the following lines of data (See DEFINITIONS OF TERMS, Section 26 (EQUATIONS OF MOTION AND STEADY-STATE EQUILIBRIUM CONFIGURATIONS)):

a) Steady-state configuration of the link: This line contains two numbers representing the steady-state orientation angles of the cable link.

b) Initial deviations from the steady-state configuration: This line contains two numbers representing the deviations of the link orientation angles away from their steady-state values.

c) Initial deviations of the link motion from zero: This line contains two numbers representing the deviations of the derivatives of the link orientation angles away from zero.

13) Analysis option 3: If the analysis option of 3 (steady-state analysis) is specified, enter the following line of data (See **DEFINITIONS OF TERMS**, Section 26 (EQUATIONS OF MOTION AND STEADY-STATE EQUILIBRIUM CONFIGURATIONS)):

a) Steady-state configuration of the link: This line contains two numbers representing initial estimates of the steady-state orientation angles of the cable link.

14) Analysis option 5: If the analysis option of 5 (steady-state analysis followed by a nonlinear dynamic analysis) is specified, enter the following lines of data (See **DEFINITIONS OF TERMS**, Section 26 (EQUATIONS OF MOTION AND STEADY-STATE EQUILIBRIUM CONFIGURATIONS)):

a) Steady-state configuration of the link: This line contains two numbers representing initial estimates of the steady-state orientation angles of the cable link.

b) Initial deviations from the steady-state configuration: This line contains two numbers representing the deviations of the link orientation angles away from their steady-state values.

c) Initial deviations of the link motion from zero: This line contains two numbers representing the deviations of the derivatives of the link orientation angles away from zero.

15) Loading function number and coefficients: If loading functions are to be used, enter the set number, the normal drag coefficient, and the side (or lift) coefficient for the link. Note that positive side coefficients indicate a right-hand lay cable and negative coefficients indicate a left-hand lay cable.

#### NUMBER OF TOWED SPHERES

Following the input of the individual link data, enter the total number of towed spheres.

#### INDIVIDUAL TOWED SPHERE DATA

The next input is a series of data describing the physical properties of each towed sphere.

1) Body number. See **DEFINITIONS OF TERMS**, Section 6 (BODY CONNECTION ARRAY).

2) Towed sphere label (up to 10 characters in A10 format).

3) Body number of adjacent lower numbered link. See **DEFINITIONS OF TERMS**, Section 6 (BODY CONNECTION APRAY)

- 4) Towed sphere dry weight (lb or N).
- 5) Towed sphere diameter (in or cm).

#### NUMBER OF TOWED VEHICLES

Following the input of the individual sphere data, enter the total number of towed vehicles.

#### INDIVIDUAL TOWED VEHICLE DATA

The next input is a series of data sets describing the physical, geometric, and hydrodynamic properties of each towed vehicle, as follows:

1) Body number. See **DEFINITIONS OF TERMS**, Section 6 (BODY CONNECTION ARRAY).

2) Towed body label (up to 15 characters in A15 format).

3) Towed body reference point label (up to 15 characters in A15 format).

4) Body number of adjacent lower numbered link. See **DEFINITIONS OF TERMS**, Section 6 (BODY CONNECTION ARRAY).

- 5) Towed body dry weight (lb or N).
- 6) Towed body axial length (ft or m).
- 7) Towed body volume ( $ft^3$  or  $m^3$ )
- 8) Towed body moments of inertia, Ixx, Iyy, Izz (slug-ft<sup>2</sup> or N-m<sup>2</sup>).
- 9) Towed body products of inertia, Ixy, Ixz, Iyz (slug-ft<sup>2</sup> or N- $m^{2}$ ).

10) Mass center position vector: This line contains three numbers representing the vehicle-fixed x, y, and z components of the position vector of the mass center of the vehicle relative to the cable attachment point (ft or m). Negative numbers indicate negative coordinate directions. See **DEFINITIONS OF TERMS**, Section 16 (TOWED VEHICLE PHYSICAL DATA).

11) Center of buoyancy position vector: This line contains three numbers representing the vehicle-fixed x, y, and z components of the position vector of the buoyancy center of the vehicle relative its mass center (ft or m). Negative numbers indicate negative coordinate directions. See **DEFINITIONS OF TERMS**, Section 16 (TOWED VEHICLE PHYSICAL DATA).

12) Hydrodynamic center position vector: This line contains three numbers representing the vehicle-fixed x, y, and z components of the position vector of the hydrodynamic center of the vehicle relative its mass center (ft or m). Negative numbers indicate negative coordinate directions. See **DEFINITIONS OF TERMS**, Section 16 (TOWED VEHICLE PHYSICAL DATA).

13) Analysis options 1 and 4: If analysis option 1 (linear dynamic analysis) or analysis option 4 (steady-state analysis followed by a linear dynamic analysis) is specified, enter the following lines of data (See **DEFINITIONS OF TERMS**, Section 26 (EQUATIONS OF MOTION AND STEADY-STATE EQUILIBRIUM CONFIGURATIONS)):

a) Steady-state configuration of the vehicle: This line contains three numbers representing the steady-state orientation angles of the towed vehicle. For analysis type 1 the correct values must be given, whereas for analysis type 4 only estimates must be provided.

b) Steady-state control surface angles: This line contains four numbers representing the steady-state values of the angles of the control surfaces A and B, the rudder, and the sternplane of the vehicle.

c) Initial deviations from the steady-state configuration: This line contains three numbers representing the deviations of the vehicle orientation angles away from their steady-state values.

d) Initial deviations of the link motion from zero: This line contains three numbers representing the deviations of the derivatives of the vehicle orientation angles away from zero.

e) Increment of vehicle configuration: This line contains three numbers representing increments in the vehicle orientation angles used for calculating partial derivatives in the linearized equations of motion of the system.

f) Increment of vehicle motion: This line contains three numbers representing increments in the derivatives of the three vehicle orientation angles used for calculating the partial derivatives in the linearized equations of motion of the system.

g) Increment of control surface angles: This line contains four numbers representing increments in the derivatives of the four vehicle control surface angles. These increments are used for calculating the partial derivatives in the linearized equations of motion of the system.

14) Analysis option 2 without closed-loop control: If the analysis option of 2 (nonlinear dynamic analysis) without closed-loop control is specified, enter the following lines of data:

a) Initial configuration of the vehicle: This line contains three numbers representing the initial values of the orientation angles of the vehicle. See **DEFINITIONS OF TERMS**, Section 11 (LINK ORIENTATION ANGLES).

b) Initial motion of the vehicle: This line contains three numbers representing the initial values of the first derivatives of the orientation angles of the vehicle.

c) Initial control surface angles: This line contains four numbers representing the initial values of the angles of the control surfaces A and B, the rudder, and the sternplane of the vehicle.

15) Analysis option 2 with closed-loop control: If the analysis option of 2 (nonlinear dynamic analysis) with closed-loop control is specified, enter the following lines of data (See **DEFINITIONS OF TERMS**, Section 26 (EQUATIONS OF MOTION AND STEADY-STATE EQUILIBRIUM CONFIGURATIONS)):

a) Steady-state configuration of the vehicle: This line contains three numbers representing the steady-state orientation angles of the vehicle.

b) Steady-state control surface angles: This line contains four numbers representing the steady-state values of the angles of the control surfaces A and B, the rudder, and the sternplane of the vehicle.

c) Initial deviations from the steady-state configuration: This line contains three numbers representing the deviations of the vehicle orientation angles away from their steady-state values.

d) Initial deviations of the vehicle motion from zero: This line contains three numbers representing the deviations of the derivatives of the vehicle orientation angles away from zero.

16) Analysis option 3: If the analysis option of 3 (steady-state analysis) is specified, enter the follow ing line of data (See **DEFINITIONS OF TERMS**, Section 26 (EQUATIONS OF MOTION AND STEADY-STATE EQUILIBRIUM CONFIGURATIONS)):

a) Steady-state configuration of the vehicle: This line contains three numbers representing initial estimates the steady-state orientation angles of the vehicle.

b) Steady-state control surface angles: This line contains four numbers representing the steady-state values of the angles of the control surfaces A and B, the rudder, and the sternplane of the vehicle.

17) Analysis option 5: If the analysis option of 5 (steady-state analysis followed by a nonlinear dynamic analysis) is specified, enter the following lines of data (See **DEFINITIONS OF TERMS**, Section 26 (EQUATIONS OF MOTION AND STEADY-STATE EQUILIBRIUM CONFIGURATIONS)):

a) Steady-state configuration of the vehicle: This line contains three numbers representing initial estimates the steady-state orientation angles of the vehicle.

b) Steady-state control surface angles: This line contains four numbers representing the steady-state values of the angles of the control surfaces A and B, the rudder, and the sternplane of the vehicle.

b) Initial deviations from the steady-state configuration: This line contains three numbers representing the deviations of the vehicle orientation angles away from their steady-state values.

c) Initial deviations of the vehicle motion from zero: This line contains three numbers representing the deviations of the derivatives of the link orientation angles away from zero.

18) If the closed-loop control option was specified, then the user must next indicate whether the vehicle is actively controlled: Enter 1 if the towed vehicle contains active control surfaces piloted by a closed-loop control law; enter 0 if the vehicle has no active control surfaces. If active control surfaces are to be included, the following lines of data are required to define the active surfaces and specify the control laws. See **DEFINITIONS OF TERMS**, Section 20 (CLOSED LOOP CONTROL LAW).

a) Number of active control surfaces on the vehicle (up to four).

b) Active control surface identifiers: This line contains a single number for each active control surface on the vehicle. For each surface, enter its identifying integer as follows:

Integer	Control Surface
1	surface A
2	surface B
3	rudder
4	sternplane

The values of the angular deflections of these control surfaces are the entries of the vehicle control surface vector; the values appear in the order of their specifying integers defined above.

Actuator switches: This line contains a single number for each active control c) surface. Enter 1 if an actuator model is to be used to "drive" the control surface; enter 0 if no actuator model is to be used. Note that specifying 0 provides ideal (instantaneous) control surface response, while specifying 1 can provide more realistic response of the mechanical actuation method. See DEFINITIONS OF TERMS, Section 21 (ACTUATOR MODEL).

Actuator characteristics: For each active control surface that is to use an d) actuator model, enter the following three lines of data:

This line contains two numbers representing the natural frequency Line 1: in Hertz and damping ratio of the actuator.

This line contains three numbers representing the minimum and Line 2: maximum operating angles in degrees and the mechanical backlash in degrees of the actuator.

This line contains two numbers representing the minimum and Line 3: maximum operating rates in degrees per second of the actuator.

Number of state variables for the vehicle (up to eight). e)

Q. . X7 \* 11

State variable identifiers: This line contains a single number for each state f) variable of the vehicle. For each variable, enter its identifying integer as follows:

Integer	State Variable	
1	yaw angle	
2	pitch angle	
3	roll angle	
4	yaw rate	
5	pitch rate	
6	roll rate	
7	depth	
8	depth rate	

The state variables of the vehicle are the entries of the vehicle state vector; they appear in the order of their specifying integers in the table above.

Noise switches: This line contains a single number for each state variable of g) the vehicle. For each variable, enter 1 if bandlimited white noise is to be added to that variable: enter 0 if no noise is to be added. The white noise is modelled by a set of Gaussian distributed random numbers; the white noise is bandlimited by digital filtering with a low pass filter.

Noise characteristics: For each state variable which is to have noise included, h) enter a single line of data containing two numbers representing the standard deviation of the noise and its desired cut-off frequency in Hertz.

Number of nonzero commanded deviation (feedforward) inputs (up to 4). i)

The feedforward facet of the control law allows the user to command changes i) to the vehicle configuration (roll, pitch, and yaw angles) and the depth of the mass center of the vehicle. These variables may be specified in one of two ways:

1) by using a precoded function, or 2) by using a profile of data values. In the latter case, linear interpolation is used between data values; this is similar to an acceleration profile, except that the data values represent the variable itself and **not** its second derivative.

For each commanded input, enter the following data lines:

i) The first line contains two integers identifying the commanded variable and the mode of specification. These integers are defined as follows:

Integer	Commanded Variable	
1 2 3 4	yaw angle pitch angle roll angle depth	
Integer	Specification Mode	
1 2	precoded function profile of data points	

ii) If precoded function is specified, enter five numbers representing the constants  $f_0$ , A, b, p, and  $\phi$  on the next line. See **DEFINITIONS OF TERMS**, Section 9 (PRECODED FUNCTIONS).

iii) If a profile of data points is specified, first enter the number of data points on the next line. Then, on subsequent lines, enter the data point pairs, each pair on a single line. Each data pair consists of two numbers representing the time (seconds) and the commanded input (angles in degrees and depth in feet or meters) at that time.

The commanded variables of the vehicle are the entries of its commanded variable vector; the variables appear in the order of their identifying integers defined above.

19) Hydrodynamic coefficients for the towed body: The next 56 lines of input contain the hydrodynamic coefficients used to calculate the hydrodynamic forces on the vehicle (See **DEFINITIONS OF TERMS**, Section 19 (FLUID FORCES ON TOWED VEHICLES)). Enter them as follows:

Line 1: 
$$X'_{\dot{u}} \quad X'_{\dot{w}} \quad X'_{\dot{q}}$$
  
Line 2:  $X'_{uu} \quad X'_{uv} \quad X'_{uw}$   
Line 3:  $X'_{up} \quad X'_{uq} \quad X'_{ur}$   
Line 4:  $X'_{vv} \quad X'_{vw}$   
Line 5:  $X'_{vp} \quad X'_{vq} \quad X'_{vr}$   
Line 6:  $X'_{ww}$   
Line 7:  $X'_{wp} \quad X'_{wq} \quad X'_{wr}$   
Line 8:  $X'_{pp} \quad X'_{pq} \quad X'_{pr}$ 

Line 9:	X'aa	$X'_{qr}$ X	/ *7
Line 10:	X'uus,	Χ΄ μωδ,	X'uq bs
Line 11:	Χ΄ <sub>νννδ,</sub>	$X'_{wq\delta_{t}}$	$X'_{qq\delta_{t}}$
Line 12:	Χ' <sub>μμδ,δ,</sub>	X'uq b, b,	$X'_{qq\delta_r\delta_r}$
Line 13:	Χ' <sub>μμδ,δ,</sub>	$X'_{\omega w \delta_i \delta_i}$	$X'_{\mu q \delta_i \delta_j}$
Line 14:	X' **** \$, \$,	Χ' <sub>wqδ,δ</sub> ,	Χ' <sub>qqδ,δ</sub> ,
Line 15:	Y',	Y', Y',	
Line 16:	Y'w	Y'up Y	ur
Line 17:	Y'w	$Y'_{wp}$	
Line 18:	Y'pq	$Y'_{qr}$	
Line 19:	Υ' <sub>шиδ,</sub>	Y'uq b,	$Y'_{qq\delta_r}$
Line 20:	Ζ' <sub>4</sub>	$Z'_{\dot{w}} = Z'_{\dot{w}}$	à
Line 21:	Ζ'	Z' <sub>w</sub> Z	104
Line 22:	Ζ'μρ	Z' <sub>14</sub> Z	7' ' WT
Line 23:	Z′w	Ζ',	
Line 24:	$Z'_{vp}$	$Z'_{wq}$ Z	V7
Line 25:	Z'ww		
Line 26:	$Z'_{wp}$	Z' <sub>wq</sub> Z	Z′ <sub>wr</sub>
Line 27:	Z' <sub>pp</sub>	$Z'_{pq}$ Z	7' 'pr
Line 28:	$Z'_{qq}$	Z' <sub>qr</sub> Z	с) Г. <del>П.</del>
Line 29:	Ζ' <sub>μιιδ,</sub>	Ζ' wwb,	Z' wa da
Line 30:	Ζ', ww δ,	Ζ' <sub>wqδ,</sub>	$Z'_{qq\delta_{i}}$
Line 31:	Ζ'δ,δ,	$Z'_{\omega w \delta, \delta_{i}}$	$Z'_{\mu q \delta_i \delta_i}$
Line 32:	Ζ',,,δ,	Ζ', wq δ, δ,	Ζ' <sub>qqδ,δ</sub> ,

Line 33: 
$$K'_{\nu}$$
  $K'_{\dot{p}}$   $K'_{\dot{r}}$   
Line 34:  $K'_{u\nu}$   $K'_{up}$   $K'_{ur}$   
Line 35:  $K'_{wq}$   $K'_{wp}$   $K'_{wr}$   
Line 36:  $K'_{pq}$   $K'_{qr}$   
Line 37:  $K'_{uu\delta_r}$   $K'_{uq\delta_r}$   $K'_{qq\delta_r}$ 

Line 38:	M'u	$M'_{w}$	M' <sub>q</sub>
Line 39:	M'uu	M'uv	M'ww
Line 40:	$M'_{\mu p}$	M'uq	M'ur
Line 41:	M'w	M'w	

		NCS	C TM 550-90
Line 42:	$M'_{vp}$	M' <sub>vq</sub> N	1' <sub>vr</sub>
Line 43:	M'ww		
Line 44:	$M'_{wp}$	M' <sub>wq</sub> I	M′ <sub>wr</sub>
Line 45:	$M'_{PP}$	М' <sub>рд</sub> М	M' <sub>pr</sub>
Line 46:	M' <sub>qq</sub>	M' <sub>qr</sub> N	1',,
Line 47:	<i>Μ΄</i> <sub>μιιδ,</sub>	M΄ <sub>ωνδ,</sub>	M' <sub>μqδ,</sub>
Line 48:	<i>Μ΄</i> <sub>wwδ,</sub>	M' <sub>wqδ,</sub>	$M'_{qq\delta_{i}}$
Line 49:	Μ'δ,δ,	Μ' <sub>49δ,δ,</sub>	Μ' <sub>99δ,δ,</sub>
Line 50:	М'μωδ,δ,	$M'_{uw\delta_i\delta_i}$	Μ' <sub>μqδ,δ,</sub>
Line 51:	Μ'~~~δ,δ,	Μ' <sub>wqδ,ö,</sub>	Μ' <sub>qqδ,δ,</sub>

Line 52:	N′ <sub>v</sub>	N',	$N'_{r}$
Line 53:	N'w	$N'_{\mu p}$	N'ur
Line 54:	N'wq	$N'_{wp}$	N'wr
Line 55:	$N'_{pq}$	$N'_{qr}$	
Line 56:	N'un dr	N' ug br	$N'_{qq\delta}$

#### SYSTEM CONTROL LAW GAIN MATRICES

If a nonlinear dynamic analysis (options 2 or 5) with closed-loop control has been specified, enter the system feedback and feed-forward gain matrices as follows:

- a. Enter the feedback control gain matrix by rows. Start each row on a new input line.
- b. Enter the feed-forward control gain matrix by rows. Start each row on a new input line.

Note that the system control surface vector, the system state vector, and the system commanded variable vectors for the control law are defined by concatenating the appropriate vectors for each of the towed vehicles. The order in which these individual vehicle vectors appear in the system vectors is the same as the order in which they were input. See **DEFINITIONS OF TERMS**, Section 20 (CLOSED-LOOP CONTROL LAW).

To determine the units of a particular entry of these matrices, use the following guidelines. If these values multiply an angular deviation, they are unitless; if they multiply an angular rate deviation, they have the units of seconds; if they multiply a depth deviation, they have the units of  $ft^{-1}$ ; and, if they multiply a depth rate deviation, they have the units of seconds/ft.

#### MOTION OF THE MEAN SHIP FRAME AND SYSTEM REFERENCE POINT

The mean ship frame may exhibit planar motion relative to the inertial reference frame; this motion is described by two variables representing the forward (or reverse) speed and the turning angle of the ship. Also, Q the system reference point may have arbitrary motion relative to the mean ship frame; this motion is described by three variables representing the forward, starboard, and vertical (downward) displacement of Q.

1) Analysis options 1 and 4: If analysis options 1 (linear dynamic analysis) or 4 (steady-state followed by linear dynamic analysis) has been specified, enter the following lines of data (See **DEFINITIONS OF TERMS**, Sections 7 (MEAN SHIP FRAME, INERTIAL FRAME, AND COORDINATE SYSTEMS) and 26 (EQUATIONS OF MOTION AND STEADY-STATE EQUILIBRIUM CONFIGURATIONS)):

a) Steady-state mean ship frame motion: Enter the steady-state ship speed (ft/sec or m/sec) and turning rate (degrees/second).

b) Steady-state system reference point position: Enter the steady-state X, Y, and Z coordinates of the system reference point relative to the mean ship frame. Recall that initially the mean ship frame is aligned with the inertial reference frame.

c) For analysis option 4 only, enter the maximum number of iterations (minimum of 6) and the maximum system error allowed in the calculation of the steady-state configuration of the system. Note that 20-30 iterations may be needed for convergence for partially submerged systems and systems undergoing steady turns.

d) System tow point motion as external input: Enter 1 to include the tow point motion as an external input. Enter 0 to **not** to include this motion as external input. If this option is to be included, enter the following lines of input:

Line 1: Enter three numbers representing the increments of the forward, starboard, and downward displacements of the system tow point relative to the origin of the mean-ship-frame used for numerical calculation of the partial derivatives in the [B] matrix in the linear equations of motion.

Line 2: Enter three numbers representing the increments of the derivatives of the forward, starboard, and downward displacements of the system tow point relative to the origin of the mean-ship-frame used for numerical calculation of the partial derivatives in the [B] matrix in the linear equations of motion.

Line 3: Enter three numbers representing the increments of the second derivatives of the forward, starboard, and downward displacements of the system tow point relative to the origin of the mean-ship-frame used for numerical calculation of the partial derivatives in the [B] matrix in the linear equations of motion.

Note that the actual deviations of the tow point motion are calculated in SUBROUTINE TPMOTN a user-supplied routine. See **DEFINITIONS OF TERMS**, Section 27 (DEVIATIONS OF EXTERNAL INPUTS AND LINEAR SYSTEM DYNAMICS).

2) Analysis options 3 and 5: If analysis options 3 (steady-state analysis) or 5 (steady-state analysis followed by nonlinear dynamic analysis) is specified, then enter the following three lines of data (See DEFINITIONS OF TERMS, Section 26 (EQUATIONS OF MOTION AND STEADY-STATE EQUILIBRIUM CONFIGURATIONS)):

a) Steady-state mean ship frame motion: Enter the steady-state ship speed (ft/sec or m/sec) and turning rate (degrees/second).

b) Steady-state system reference point position: Enter the steady-state forward, starboard, and vertically downward displacements of the system reference point relative to the mean ship frame.

c) Enter the maximum number of iterations (minimum of 6) and the maximum error allowed in the calculation of the steady-state configuration of the system. Note that 20-30 iterations may be needed for convergence for partially submerged systems or systems undergoing a steady turn.

3) Analysis options 2 and 5: If the analysis option 2 (nonlinear dynamic analysis) or 5 (steady-state analysis followed by nonlinear dynamic analysis) is specified, five variables are used to describe the motion of the mean ship frame and system reference point during the dynamic analysis. They are identified by the following integers:

Identifying Integer	Variable
1	Forward displacement (X) of the system reference point relative to the mean ship frame (backward, if negative).
2	Starboard displacement (Y) of the system reference point relative to the mean ship frame.
3	Vertical (downward) displacement (Z) of the system reference point relative to the mean ship frame.
4	Forward speed of the mean ship frame relative to the inertial reference frame.
5	Turning angle of the mean ship frame relative to the inertial reference frame (positive for starboard turning).

The data describing these variables can be specified in two ways: 1) by using precoded functions, or 2) by using acceleration profiles. The specific data for these options should be input as follows:

a) Number of nonzero variables: Enter the number of these variables that are to have nonzero values.

b) For each nonzero motion variable, the following data lines must be entered. If 0 was entered for the number of nonzero variables, skip these lines.

i) Identifying integer and specification mode: On the next line, enter the variable's identifying integer and specification mode. A specification mode of 1 indicates that a precoded function will be used to specify the variable; a mode of 2 indicates that an acceleration profile will be used.

ii) If a precoded function is selected, enter the values of the precoded function constants on the next line (See **DEFINITIONS OF TERMS**, Section 9 (PRECODED FUNCTIONS)). For variables 1-3, six values are entered representing
the values of the constants  $f_0$ , A, b, p,  $\phi$ , and m. For variables 4 and 5, five values are entered representing the values of the constants  $f_0$ , A, b, p, and  $\phi$ . If an acceleration profile is selected, skip this line.

iii) If an acceleration profile is selected, enter the number of data points in the profile on the next line. Next, enter a set of data lines equal in number to the number of data pairs. The first line of this set contains: (1) the initial time, (2) the initial second derivative of the data value, (3) the initial first derivative of the data value, and (4) the initial data value. Each subsequent line contains: 1) the time, and 2) the corresponding second derivative of the data value. Note that the second derivative of the data value is defined as the second derivative of variables 1-3 and 5, and the first derivative of variable 4. As defined these are all either linear or angular acceleration values.

#### INTEGRATION OPTION AND PARAMETERS:

The next set of data has two lines of input. On the first line, enter a single integer value to indicate the numerical integration scheme to be used. Enter 1 for a fixed-step Runge-Kutta method; enter 2 for a fixed-step predictor-corrector (PC) method. Note that the PC method is generally preferred over the Runge-Kutta method in that it requires only half as much computation time. Since the PC algorithm is not self-starting, the fixed-step Runge-Kutta algorithm is used to initiate the integration process. On the next line, enter three numbers: 1) the integration starting time. A the integration ending time, and 3) the integration time increment.

## CONTROL LAW SAMPLING TIME

If the closed-loop control law was specified, then on the next line, enter a single data entry representing the sampling time increment of the control law. For best operation of DYNTOCABS, this value should be an integer multiple of the integration time increment. The control law will be employed and the control surface angular positions will be updated as the integration process passes over each sampling time; these times are defined to be the initial integration time and all integer multiples of the sampling time increment beyond that time.

### **OUTPUT OPTIONS**

1) The next line contains the time increment for printing the computed data to an output file. Since printing this data at each integration step can produce an excessive amount of output, the print time increment is usually greater than the integration time increment. For best operation of DYNTOCABS, the print time increment should be an integer multiple of the integration time increment.

2) At the beginning of the output data, DYNTOCABS lists a copy (or echo) of the input data. The extent of the listing of computed data is a user option. To exercise this option, enter an integer (0,1,2,3,4) in column 1 according to the following printing priority:

0 - Prints all computed data: the X-Y position, forward speed, turning angle, and turning rate of the mean ship frame; the position, velocity, and acceleration of Q the system reference point; the control surface angular positions for each towed vehicle; the position, velocity, and acceleration of the mass center of each towed vehicle relative to the inertial reference frame and the mean ship frame; the orientation angles and their derivatives for each towed vehicle (in degrees, degrees/second, and degrees/second<sup>2</sup>); the vehicle-fixed X,

Y, and Z components of the tension force acting on each towed vehicle; the inertial X, Y, and Z components of the cable tension force acting at Q the system reference point; the tensions in each cable link; the position, velocity, and acceleration of the reference point of each link and towed vehicle relative to the inertial reference frame and to the mean ship frame; and the orientation angles and their derivatives for each cable link (in degrees, degrees/second, and degrees/second<sup>2</sup>).

1 - Prints as above for option 0, except for the second derivatives of the orientation angles of the cable links and the accelerations of the reference points of the cable links and towed vehicles.

2 - Prints as above for option 1, except for the first derivatives of the orientation angles of the cable links and the velocities of the reference points of the cable links and towed vehicles.

3 - Prints as above for option 2, except for the orientation angles of and the tensions in the cable links.

4 - Prints as above for option 3, except for the positions of the reference points of the cable links and towed vehicles.

3) During the execution of a nonlinear time-domain dynamic analysis (analysis options 2 or 5), DYNTOCABS stores information to a file for later use (for example, by a plotting program). On this, the last line of input, enter an integer value representing the number of integration time increments between writes to this file. For example, if this value is specified to be 100 and the integration increment is 0.0025 seconds, then information will be written to this file every 0.25 seconds.

## EXAMPLE INPUT DATA

The purpose of this section is to provide the user with a sample data set that illustrates many of the features of DYNTOCABS. To this end, consider the cable link system shown in Figure 15. The system is made up of 15 cable links, a towed vehicle, and a sphere; let them be numbered as shown. The cable links have varying lengths beginning with link number 1 at 100 feet and progressing to links at the free end of the cable of 5 feet. The main cable from the system tow point to the towed vehicle is 5/8 (0.625) inches in diameter, weighs 0.65 lb/ft, and has a buoyancy force of 0.127 lb/ft. The shorter cable connecting the sphere to the main tow cable has the same characteristics, except it weighs only 0.2 lb/ft. The towed vehicle is 2.85 feet in length and weighs 60 lb (in air); the towed sphere is 3.5 inches in diameter and weighs 1 lb in air. The system is fully submerged in still water.

DYNTOCABS will first determine the steady-state configuration of the system traveling in a straight line at 10 knots (16.87 ft/sec), and then perform a nonlinear time-domain analysis on the system for 20 seconds as it moves into a turn and undergoes tow point excitation. The angular acceleration of the ship is given by the profile shown in Figure 16; the initial angular displacement and angular velocity are zero. This profile results in a constant angular velocity of 0.5 deg/sec for the mean ship frame after 7 seconds. The vertical motion of the system tow point is prescribed through a precoded function to be  $z = 5.0 + 0.5 \cos(\pi t) \tanh(0.5t)$ .

The sternplane of the towed vehicle is controlled by a closed loop control law of the form:

$$\delta_s = K_{bl} \, \delta z + K_{b2} \, \delta \dot{z} + K_f \, \delta z_c$$

A depth change of 5 feet is commanded beginning at time zero. The sternplane will be driven with an actuator. The actuator has a natural frequency of 0.63 Hertz, a damping ratio of 0.9, minimum and maximum operating angles of -20 deg and +20 deg, respectively, minimum and maximum operating rates of -100 deg/sec and +100 deg/sec, respectively, and no backlash.

The input for this analysis is shown on the following pages. Note that comments have been included to the right of the data to add clarity.

	INPUT FOR HODY 6	LNPUT FUR HODY 8	ન ACtual હામ્ય ક્રમોનામાં	OF AUDIN 16.74 LOGANT	INFUT FOR PODY 11	INPUT FOR BODY 12	
	°. °	0. ¢	0.0	°. °	a . o	0.0	
0		0.0	0.0 0.0 1.82	0000 0.00 1.6	0.0 0.0 1.82	0.0 0.0 1.87	0.0
TM 550-9	7 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5	с. н н н н н н н н н н н н н н н н н н н	22.0 23.0 24.0 25.0	25:0 25:0 25:0 25:0 0:0 0:0 0:0 0:0 0.0 0.0 0.0	0.127 0.127 0.00 0.00 0.0 0.0 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	0.127 550 0.65 0.0 0.0 0.0 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	5.0 0.625 70.0
NCSC	TA STEADY STATE & NONLINEAR DYNAMIC ANALYSIS USE CLOSEP LOOP CONTROL. USE CLOSEP LOOP CONTROL. USE FEGLIGH UNITS USE FEGLIGH UNITS USE LADJING FUNCTIONS CSE LADJING FUNCTIONS CSE LADJING FUNCTION CSE LADJING FUNCTION CS	INVITY, AND TI AND TI AND TI AND TI AND TANG TANG TANG TANG TANG TANG TANG TANG	INITIAL DEVIATIONS OF ANGLE DERIVATIVES LOADING FUNCTION NO., DRAG CORFF, LIFT COFF INPUT FOR RODY 2	THEFT FOR POLY 3	ACOF ROT TURI	INPUT FOR POINT 5	
	E INPUT DA		0. 3	0 0	о. с	o c	0.0
	5 - EXAMPI	00	0.0 1.0 2.0 2	000 2.6 2.6	0000 000 1000 1000	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0.0 0.0 1.82
	DYNTCAR NTCAR 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	1.1 1.1 0.65 0.127 1.00.0 0.625 10.0 0.0	0.0 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	14.0 0.0 0.0 1.1 1.4 1.4 1.5 0.65 0.65 0.65 0.65 0.625	16.0 0.0 0.0 1 5 1 5 6.6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 1 8 6 6 1 8 6 7 8 8 1 8 6 7 1 8 1 8 1 8 1 8 1 8 1 1 8 1 1 1 1 1 1	00

į

		NCSC TM	550-90		
0.0 0.0			3.92984E 04	2.58288E 04	3.941895.02
0.0 0.0	c 5		1.52984E+00	2.93684E-02	-1.928476.04
14 1.67	2.0	INFUT FUR RUDY 14	-2.59162E 02	2.07725E 05	1.1/1/4/E. 02
1:14 			2.6631'E-02	1.45//2E 04	9.05515F 43 1.064865.02
~ x			3.50250E 04	1.30/485-03	1.220208-03
0.2			8,1485/E-03	1.60112E-03	-7,86517E 05 .1 10681E 02
0.127			20-369616-7-	1 354075-03	-1 26835E 03
			6.52860F 02	0.000005.400	1.21698E 02 COEFFICIENTS FOR LATERAL FORCE
0.0 0.0			-3.60221E-01	0.00	1.30898F.01
0.0			0.00	5.24921E 02	
0.0 0.0			4.82499E 03	0.00	5 D.54348
1 1	0.0		20-37-067-C-	10 3130001 C	9 14112F 03 COFFEICIENTS FOR NORMAL FORCE
15			20 JOC077 C		- 9 50 AC 400
\$				-1 95330F 01	
				0 0	
			0.0	0.0	0,0
			3.31934F. 01		
			0.0	-1.25951E 01	0.0
			0.0	0.0	0.0
0.0			2.45608E-02	0.0	-1,22045F 03
0.0			-2.83821E 01	- 4.64644E D2	8.61251E-02
0.0			-2.85256E-03	0.0	0.0
1 1.82	0.0		2.965101.03	0.0	0.0
16		INPUT FOR BODY 16	0.0	0.0	0.0 3 Monse Ma Constents For Boll MOMENT
1.16				- 9, 933115 10- - 9 946968 07	3.14-27-27 VARIENTER CONTRACTOR CONTRACTOR
<u>،</u>			5.13560E-03	-3.09690E 02	1.12222E 02
0.2			-2.23591E 03	-1.94126E-03	
0.127			- 6,98583E-03	0.0	0.0 · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
5.0			I.63623E-03	-9.341375 U3	LUZTER VE DUEFFILIENIE FUR FILLE ENTERIE 6.105835-82
			0.0	-1,00860F 01	0.0
			0.0	0.0	
2. C			0.0	0.0	(a
1.82	0.0	A STATE AND A STATE AN	8.52423E-02	10 330166 1.	
		NUMBER OF TOWER STREADS TWOTT FATS PARSY 11	0.0	0.0	0.0
5 Pure 28		TOMED SPREAKE LARKL	-5.84556E-03	0.0	0.0
16		LUMER LINK NUMBER	-9.39347E-02	-1,53787E-02	2,879476.02
() s		THAN WEIGHT		0.0	6. S
· · ·		NUMBER (F. 10%FP VEHICLES	0.0	0.0	بر ب
• ~		TAUT F R ROY 13	0.0	0.0	0.1
6000 Land 11		T. M. D. RODY LAREL	1.21698E 02	3.108265 03	BUSHAGHE OBE COPUETCIENTS FOR YAW MUMENT A success of
н:		TCMU D BUDY REFERENCE POINT LAREL	6.68894E-02	3.09646F 02	
2		IVONER LINK NEMER Provide Britanie	U.UU -4 746715-01	1,1,100000 U.A	
60.0 2 65		TORED BUYST TENCE	1 59006E-02	0.0	0.0
0.4219		-WORD X VOLUME	-3.4586D-03 -1.	7117P-02	FEFISHACK GLANS
0.164 0.966	1.031	IXX, IYY, IZZ	7.10550-03		PEED PURMARD GIAN
0.03 0.015	3 0.324E 8	1xy, 1x2, 1yz		2	STEASY STATE SHIP SPERT AND TURN RATE of everthe DT Pass Det Tas ship flame
0.238 0.0	0.145	RASS CENTRR POSITION VECTOR Dervancy Position Vector	25 0.001	0.1	SYSTEM ITERATION AND MAX ERROR
	0.0	HYBEODYNAMIC CENTER POSITION VECTOR	-		NUPPER OF NONZERO MOTIONS
0.0 1.0	0.0	TUMED RODY SS ANGLES CUESS	11		X DIFLATEMENT OF SYS REF FT - FRECODED FC Envertor constrants
0.0 0.0	0.0 10.0	53. CONTROL SURFACE ANGLES	-10-0 0.0 0.0	n.u u.u u.u	Z DISPLACEMENT OF SYS REF PT PRECOMED FC
	0.0	THILLA ANGLE DEVIATIONS DEVIATIONS OF INITIAL ANGLE DERIVATIVES	5.0 0.5 0.0	180.0 0.0 0.5	FUNCTION CONSTANTS
	2	USE CLOSED LOOP CONTROL FOR VEHICLE			SHIP SHED PRECORD FCT
		# OF ACTIVE CONTROL SUPEACES	16.87 0.0 0.0	0.0 0.0	FUNCTION CONSTANTS
•		SIFAMPLARS	5 2		SHEP ANGULAR AGENERATION FROFILMS Member of Points in Profile
		CREVE STERNEGARE WITH ALIVION NA ERAL FREG & CAMPING RATIO	0.0 0.0	0 0 0 0	DATA VALUES
20.0 20.0	36	MIN/MAX OPER ANGLES & BACKLASH	2.0 0.1		-
100.0 170.0		HIN/HAX CPER PATES	5.0 0.1		
~ ~		# CF STATE VARIABLES reptm z Deptm bate	100.0 0.0		
. 0		NO NOISE	2		FIXED STEP DREDICTOR CORPLETOR
		CYF NONZERO COMMANDS	0.0 20.0 0.0	025 0.0	INTERATION PARAMETERS CONTROL FAM SAMPTING TIME
< + <		DEPTH DEVIATEON BY FRONTLE • OF POINTS IN PROFILE	2.0		DELTA TIME TO PRINT
0.0 5.		DATA VALUES	0		CONTROL CUTION ANTEAD EDECARDARY IN DIAL ETTE
0.5 0.01 5.0	CU 2000CC 1	I GIGDIE OT COSESICIENTS FOR AXIAL FORCE	50		
1.331408-01	1.594508 03				
6.544225 05	2.45411E 02	8,85772E 05			
5.91514E.02	4.47755E 03				

## **EXAMPLE OUTPUT**

Before performing any analyses, DYNTOCABS provides an "echo" of the input data. This may be used to verify the user's inputs. In addition to this, DYNTOCABS provides output data at specified instants of time. Steady-state configuration data is given (if calculated) at time zero. An example output at time t=20 seconds for a printing priority of 0 is given below for the example input data shown above. Along with the time value and number of integration steps, DYNTOCABS provides kinematic data for the mean ship frame, the system reference point, the towed vehicles, the references points of the links and towed vehicles, and the cable links. It also provides the force required at the system tow point, the forces acting on the cable at the vehicle tow points, and the tensions in each of the cable links. Both the printing interval size and the printing priority are user options; the printing priority controls the amount of data printed at the end of each printing interval.

1661.0

DYNTOCARS - EXAMPLE INPUT DATA			
TIME ~ 20.000 SECONDS	TENSION AT VEHICLE REFE (VEHICLE-FIXED COMPON	RENCE (TOW) POIL	NTS
NUMER OF INTEGAATION STEPS - 8001 Numeer of calls to formed - 16010	DEPRESSUR	-290.7 <del>8</del>	0.16547
····MEAN SHIP FRAME	***REFERENCE POINTS OF THE	LINKS AND TOWER	D VEHICLES***
X-POSITION COORDINATE - 336,44 Y-POSITION COORDINATE - 20,186 FORMARD SPEED - 16,870	RELATIVE TO INERTIA SPA POSITION VECTOR COMP	NCE POVENTS	
TURNING ANGLE - 8.2500 TURNING RATE - 0.50000	< # 1	326.54 228.00	18.752 12.820 6.9150
***SYSTEM RFFEBENCE POINT (RELATIVE TO MEAN SHIP FRAME)***	ר מי מי סי סי סי סי סי סי סי סי סי סי סי סי סי		6.0454 4.1340 8564
POSITION COCRUINATES10.000 0.0000E400 5.5000	. 0 = .	-111.11 -156.06	2.0099
VELOTITY CENTRY SA - U 000025400 U 000025400 - 202457-US ACCELERATINY CONSERTS - 0.000005400 -4.2948 TEMSION COMPONENTS1889.4 142.78 290.56	- 'Y K A	-133.33 210.65 -215.12 -18.38	0.65941 0.65942 0.63403
••••CARD VEHICLES.•••	£- x z C	-219.49 -156.06 -176.04 -186.02	0.62730 1.3377 0.99648 0.84934
CONTROL SUPFACE DEFILECTIONS (DEGREES)	SPHERE	-191.02	0.78051
DEPRESSTR 0.000306+03 0.037335+00 0.00005+00 11.647	VELOCITY COMPONENTS		
MASS CENTER FURTION, VELOCITY, ACCENERATION (RELATIVE TO INFRITA SPACE)	< 4	16.708 16.008	2.3344
POSITION VECTOR COMPONENTS	c U c	16.673	1.2735
DEPRESSUR -719.73 0.62510 201.20		16.792 16.231	0.79404
VELOCITY COMPONENTS	. 0 :	16.777	0.43494
EFFERENCIA 16.790 0.18367 0.284945-01	c •	16.794	0.23258
AUCH LAPAT D. N. COMPONENTS		16.790	19144
DEFRISSONA 0.80284 0.483485-01 -0.55126E-02	- E z	16.789 16.789 16.789	0.18415 0.32322
MASS-CENTER POSITION, VELOCITY, ACCELERATION (RELATIVE TO MEAN SHIP FRAME)	N O Sphraf	16.791 16.791 16.791	0.26709 0.23648 0.22208
POSITION VECTOR COMPONENTS			
DEPRESSOR - 552.9A 60.417 200.86	ACCELERATION COMPONE	SHTS	
VELOCITY COMPARES	< «	-0.20371E.01 1 0015	0.14580 65952 0
DEPRESCOR 0,29969 2,6004 0,28494E-01	102	0.8450 0.8450 0.8450	0.10359
ACCELEPATION COMPONENTS			0.15903
DEFPESSIVE 0,80145 0.21530 -0.11869E-01	- U I	0.76377	0.84078E-01
ORIENTATION ANCLES RELATIVE TO FEAN SHIP FRAME (3-2-1 POTATION SEQUENCE IN DECREES)	. צר א 	405850 4058950 4056950 40550 400500 40050 4000 40050 40050 40050 4000 4000 4000 400000000	0.54422E-01 0.51449E-01 0.49792E-01
DEPRESSOR -7.6341 0.79413 -0.67750E-01		0.80382	0,48494E-01 0,56766E-01
DERIVATIVES OF THE ORIENTATION ANGLES (DEGRERS/SECOND)	200	0.76458 0.76458	0.60870E-01
DFPRESSOR -0.36918 0.30185E-01 -0.12572E-01		1.001.0	
SECOND DEPIVATIVES OF THE ORIENTATION ANGLES (DEGREES/SECOND++2)	RELATIVE TO MEAN SHIP F	'RAMF.	
DEPRESSOR 0.39017E-01 -0.16431 -0.40169E-02	POSITION VECTOR COMP	ONENTS	

0.206585-0 0.00142 -0.30142 -0.30142 -0.3014256 -0.5519556 -0.5519556 -0.5519556 -0.5519556 -0.2551656 -0.2519565 -0.2519565 -0.251565 -0.25556 -0.25555 -0.25555 -0.25555 -0.25555 -0.25555 -0.25555 -0.25555 -0.25555 -0.25555

5.50 21.50 21.50 55.50 107.50 55.500

6 6666666766

NCSC TM 550-90	12     10.632     -5.589       13     12.016     -6.0869       14     13.754     -6.0869       15     15.776     -6.0948       16     77     -6.0948       17     5.177     -6.0853       17     5.177     -6.0843       17     5.177     -6.0853       17     5.177     -6.0651       18     38.072     -5.9543       19     53.104     -4.5704       110     63.135     -2.5353       121     77.254     -7.7544       114     2.3805     -7.75618       115     2.9805     -7.4500       116     2.0065     -7.4500	DERIVATIVES OF THE ORIENTATION ANGLES (DECREES/SECOND)	L1 0.41426 ·0.16582 L2 -0.71367 ·0.18775 L3 0.29309 -0.31721	L4 0.813431E-01 -0.27723 L5 0.27932E-01 -0.27425 L6 0.27932E-01 -0.37784 L7 0.45578E-01 -0.31937 L9 0.27932E-01 -0.28953 L9 0.12552E-01 -0.28953 L10 0.12552E-01 -0.27322	LIZ 0.117791 1.7791 LIZ 0.1056E-01 0.95926-01 LIG 0.27176E-01 -0.33834 LIS 0.289355-02 -0.33835 LIG -0.28097E-01 -0.33452	SECOND DERIVATIVES OF THE ORIENTATION ANGLES (DEOREES/SECOND)	11 3, 12, 3 6 ( 5, 1 1 1 2, 12, 29, 20 1 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	1 1.50.44568-01 0.112725-01 1.50.44568-01 0.112725-01 1.6 -0.95945-01	L7         0.10054E         0.32799-01           L8         0.3501E-01         0.55462E-02           L9         0.1339E-01         0.693462E.02           L10         0.13399E-01         0.793462E-02           L11         0.131892-02         0.93462E-01           L12         0.131892-02         0.1318475-01           L13         0.739176         0.135562         0.135562           L14         0.131892-02         0.1355620         0.1125           L15         0.755166         0.1352892-01         1.1127           L16         -0.27578         0.5643570         0.1302892-01					
	5,5000 21,453 54,535 54,535 81,013 81,013 105,12 105,12 1186,59 1	128.00 128.50 128.76		0.20628E-08 0.70742 -0.39445 -0.62160E-02 0.63124E-01 -0.54852E-02	0.2686925 0.312015 0.312015 0.287245 0.287245 0.284105 0.284105 0.284105 0.284105	0.28366E~01 0.2686AE 01 0.345507P 01	0.32980E 01		-4.9348 1.4672 0.43528 0.43548 10.57248 10.513585 10.513585 0.57850 0.57850 0.57850 0.57850 0.57850 0.5135 0.5125	-0.15156E-01 -0.15044E-01 -0.12742E-01 -0.11106E-01	-0.43594E-01 -0.43594E-01 -0.30350E-01 -0.53888E-01		1714,4 1699,1 1699,7 1689,1 1686,9 1686,9 1535,4 13786,9	
	0.000005.00 1.7698 1.7698 25.471 25.471 25.471 40.1336 40.1336 40.231 52.201	54.545 55.832 56.481		0.000005400 0.28842 0.58136 1.0224 1.3589 1.3589 1.3589	2,1878 2,1878 2,5379 2,5661 2,5907	2.5988 2.1078 2.3049	2.3899		0.000005+00 0.23113 -0.15150 -0.11500 -0.11578 -0.11578 -0.11278	-0.21019 -0.21397 -0.21517	-0.19181 -0.19181 -0.20270 -0.20270		18 119 112 112 112 112	IP FRAME. 7
	-10.000 108.37 -274.24 -274.24 -3941.28 -944.28 -544.25 -548.45 -551.88 -551.88 -551.88	~509.92 -519.83 524,78	4TS	0.00000E+00 0.13697 -0.13697 0.138802E-01 0.91820E-01 0.15287 0.16157	0.29328 0.29328 0.29328 0.29328 0.29836	0,29929 0,24579 0,245738	0.27212	ONENTS	0.0000E.00 1.0639 0.8026 0.80295 0.9295 0.792812 0.75812 0.78234 0.78274 0.78274	0,78884 0,78904 0,79565 0,80243	0,76528 0,76528 0,76529 0,76379		02,4 234,6 48,6 48,6 10,2,0 10,2,4 10,5,4 10,6 5,5 10,6 5,4 10,6 5,4 10,6 5,4 10,6 5,4 5,5 5,4 5,5 5,5 5,5 5,5 5,5 5,5 5,5	RELATIVE TO MEAN SH PENCE IN DEGREES) 2115 -4,743
	< ぬし Q G L C I - っ K → f I :	N O SPHEPE	VELOCITY COMPONEN	≪ 10 U D B 6 U	7エーフビー	6) X 7	0 SPICE PS	ACCELERATION COMP	< 部じに81kのH=	า ¥ -1 († :	E X C S	***CABLE LINKS***	TENSION MAGNITURES 12 13 13 14 15 16 16 13 16 13 16 17 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18	ORIENTATION ANGLES R (2-3 ROTATION SEQU L1 9.

#### REFERENCES

- 1. Walton, T.S., And Polacheck, H., "Calculation of Transient Motion of Submerged Cables," Mathematics of Computation, Vol. 14, pp. 27-46, 1960.
- 2. Wilson, H., And Wang, L.C., "Computational Methods for 3D Dynamics of Cables," BER Report No. 414-58, Bureau of Engineering Research, University of Alabama, University, AL, 1987.
- Kamman, J.W., And Nguyen, T.C., "Modeling Towed Cable System Dynamics," NCSC TM 492-88, Naval Coastal Systems Center, Panama City, FL, September 1988.
- 4. Kamman, J.W., And Huston, R.L., "Modeling of Submerged Cable Dynamics," Computers and Structures, Vol. 20, pp. 623-629, 1985.
- 5. Huston, R.L., And Kamman, J.W., "A Representation of Fluid Forces in Finite Segment Cable Models," **Computers and Structures**, Vol. 14, No. 3-4, pp. 281-287, 1981.
- 6. Huston, R.L., And Kamman, J.W., "Validation of Finite Segment Cable Models," Computers and Structures, Vol. 15, pp. 653-660, 1982.
- Springston, G.B., Jr., "Generalized Hydrodynamic Loading Functions for Bare and Faired Cables in Two-Dimensional Steady-State Cable Configurations," NSRDC Report No. 2424, Washington, D.C., June 1967.
- 8. Horton, K.J., Ferrer, C.M., Watson, K.P., And Charvoz, D., "Measurements of the Hydrodynamic Force and Strum Characteristics of Stranded Cables," NCSC TM 471-87, Naval Coastal Systems Center, December 1987.
- Webster, R.L., "An Application of the Finite Element Method to the Determination of Nonlinear Static and Dynamic Responses of Underwater Cable Structures," General Electric Technical Information Series Report No. R76EMH2, Syracuse, NY, January 1976.
- Gertler, M., And Hagen, G.R., "Standard Equations of Motion for Submarine Simulation," NSRDC Report 2510, Naval Ship Research and Development Center, Washington, D.C., 1967.
- 11. Newman, J.N., Marine Hydrodynamics, MIT Press, Cambridge, MA, 1977.
- 12. Reid, R.O. And Wilson, B.W., "Boundary Flow Along a Circular Cylinder," Technical Report No. 204-4, National Engineering Science Company, February 1962.
- 13. Granville, P.S., "The Frictional Resistance and Turbulent Layer of Rough Surfaces," Report No. 1024, David Taylor Model Basin, June 1958.
- Whang, J.H. And Dobeck, G.J., "Control System Design Study for Mechanical Minesweep Systems," NCSC TN 963-90, Naval Coastal Systems Center, April 1990.



FIGURE 1. TYPICAL MULTIPLE BRANCHED TOWED SYSTEM



FIGURE 2. A SIMPLE MOORING SYSTEM



## FIGURE 3. A FINITE-SEGMENT MODEL OF A CABLE



FIGURE 4. A FINITE-SEGMENT TOWED SYSTEM MODEL



## FIGURE 5. REFERENCE LINK, REFERENCE POINTS, AND TOWED VEHICLES



FIGURE 6. NUMBERING OF THE TOWED SYSTEM MODEL OF FIGURES 4 AND 5

ł



# FIGURE 7. INERTIAL FRAME, MEAN SHIP FRAME, AND TOWED SYSTEM MODEL



## FIGURE 8. ACCELERATION PROFILE APPROXIMATION



# a. POSITIVE $\beta$ ROTATION



# b. POSITIVE $\gamma$ ROTATION

## FIGURE 9. ORIENTATION ANGLES FOR CABLE LINKS

ł



# a. POSITIVE $\gamma \, ROTATION$



## b. POSITIVE $\beta$ ROTATION

FIGURE 10. ORIENTATION ANGLES FOR TOWED VEHICLES (Sheet 1 of 2)



c. POSITIVE  $\alpha$  ROTATION

FIGURE 10. (Sheet 2 of 2)



## FIGURE 11. ZERO INITIAL CONFIGURATION OF A SINGLE BRANCHED SYSTEM



FIGURE 12. TYPICAL VEHICLE WITH POSITION VECTORS AND AXES

TANGENTIAL DRAG PROPERTES



FIGURE 13. TANGENTIAL DRAG COEFFICIENT FOR VARIOUS SURFACE ROUGHNESSES

ţ



## a. TOP VIEW



**b. SIDE VIEW** 

## FIGURE 14. TYPICAL VEHICLE WITH CONTROL SURFACES

ł





FIGURE 15. SEGMENTED MODEL OF EXAMPLE TOWED SYSTEM



FIGURE 16. ANGULAR ACCELERATION PROFILE FOR MEAN SHIP FRAME

APPENDIX A

SUMMARY OF INPUT DATA REQUIREMENTS

## APPENDIX A

## SUMMARY OF INPUT DATA REQUIREMENTS

This appendix provides an abbreviated summary of the input data requirements for quick reference. Unless otherwise specified, all data is free-formatted input, that is, each line must contain the necessary data items separated by one or more spaces; the column location of each item is arbitrary.

- 1. HEADING: Enter a heading or title of up to 75 characters.
- 2. OPTIONS:
  - a. Analyses:

Enter 1 for linear dynamic analysis. Enter 2 for nonlinear dynamic analysis. Enter 3 for steady-state analysis (SSA). Enter 4 for SSA followed by linear dynamic analysis. Enter 5 for SSA followed by nonlinear dynamic analysis.

b. Closed-loop control:

Enter 1 to include closed-loop control. Enter 0 to neglect closed-loop control.

Note: Closed-loop control is for analysis options 2 and 5, only.

c. Restart Option:

Enter 1 to activate the restart option. Enter 0 to suppress the restart option.

d. Units:

Enter 1 for the English system of units. Enter 2 for the MKS system of units.

e. Normal drag forces:

Enter 1 to include these forces. Enter 0 to neglect these forces.

f. Tangential drag forces:

Enter 1 to include these forces.

Enter 0 to neglect these forces.

g. Cable drag/lift formulation:

Enter 0 to use velocity-dependent normal and tangential drag coefficients (default method). Then, on the next line, enter the surface roughness factor.

Enter 1 to use loading functions for normal, tangential, and side (lift) forces, then enter the following data:

- i) Enter the number of loading function sets.
- ii) For each set enter the following three lines of data:
  - (1) Values of  $A_{i0}$ ,  $A_{i1}$ ,  $B_{i1}$ ,  $A_{i2}$ , and  $B_{i2}$
  - (2) Values of  $A_{n0}$ ,  $A_{n1}$ ,  $B_{n1}$ ,  $A_{n2}$ , and  $B_{n2}$
  - (3) Values of  $A_{s0}$ ,  $A_{s1}$ ,  $B_{s1}$ ,  $A_{s2}$ , and  $B_{s2}$
- h. Added mass forces: (functional for vehicles and spheres)

Enter 1 to include these forces. Enter 0 to neglect these forces.

i. Buoyancy forces:

Enter 1 to include these forces. Enter 0 to neglect these forces.

j. Gravitational forces:

Enter 1 to include these forces. Enter C to neglect these forces.

k. Point loads on the cable:

1

Enter 1 to include these forces. Enter 0 to neglect these forces.

1. Viscosities and fluid mass densities:

Enter 0 to use the default values. Enter 1 to use substitute values. Next, enter four additional data lines:

(1) Viscosity of the first fluid

- (2) Mass density of the first fluid
- (3) Viscosity of the second fluid
- (4) Mass density of the second fluid
- m. Fluid velocities:

Enter 0 for zero fluid velocities. Enter 1 for constant fluid velocities. Then, on the next two lines, enter the inertial X, Y, and Z components of the velocities of the fluids.

n. Fluid interface level:

Enter 0 for a zero interface level. Enter 1 for a nonzero interface level. Then enter the vertical distance on the next line.

3. NUMBER OF LINKS: Enter the total number of links in the cable system.

## 4. INDIVIDUAL LINK DATA: For each link, enter the following data:

- a. Body number.
- b. Link label: Up to 10 characters (A10 format).
- c. Link reference point label: Up to 10 characters (in A10 format).
- d. Body number of adjacent lower numbered link.
- e. Link dry weight density per unit length. (lb/ft or N/m)
- f. Link buoyant force (in Fluid 2) per unit length. (lb/ft or N/m)
- g. Link length. (ft or m)
- h. Link diameter. (in or cm)
- i. Point Load: If point loads are to be included, enter the inertial X, Y, and Z components of the point load. (lb or N)
- j. For analysis options 1 and 4, enter the following:

 Steady-state configuration of the link: Enter the two steady state orientation angles (these are estimates for analysis type
 (deg)

2) Initial deviation from steady-state configuration: Enter the deviations of the two orientation angles. (deg)

3) Initial deviation of the link motion from zero: Enter the first derivatives of the deviations of the two orientation angles. (deg/sec)

4) Increment of the link configuration: Enter the increments of the two orientation angles used for calculating the linear equations of motion. (deg)

5) Increment of the link motion: Enter the increments of the derivatives of the two link orientation angles used for calculation of the linear equations of motion. (deg/sec)

k. For analysis option 2 without closed-loop control, enter the following lines of data:

1) Initial configuration of the link: Enter the two orientation angles. (deg)

2) Initial motion of the link: Enter the derivatives of the two orientation angles. (deg/sec)

1. For analysis option 2 with closed-loop control, enter the following lines of data:

1) Steady-state configuration of the link: Enter the two steady-state orientation angles. (deg/sec)

2) Initial deviation of steady-state configuration: Enter the deviations of the two steady-state orientation angles. (deg/sec)

3) Initial deviation of the link motion from zero: Enter the first derivatives of the deviations of the two orientation angles. (deg/sec)

m. For analysis option 3, enter the initial estimates of the two steady-state orientation angles of the link. (deg)

n. For analysis option 5, enter the following lines of data:

1) Steady-state configuration of the link: Enter the initial estimates of the steady-state orientation angles. (deg)

2) Initial deviation of steady-state configuration: Enter the deviations of the two steady-state orientation angles from their steady-state values. (deg)

3) Initial deviation of the link motion from zero: Enter the derivatives of the deviations of the two orientation angles. (deg/sec)

o. Loading function and coefficients: If loading functions are to be used, enter the set number, the normal drag coefficient, and the side (lift) coefficient for the link.

- 5. NUMBER OF TOWED SPHERES: Enter the total number of spheres.
- 6. INDIVIDUAL TOWED SPHERE DATA: For each towed sphere, enter the following data:
  - a. Body number.
  - b. Towed sphere label: Up to 10 characters (A10 format).
  - c. Body number of adjacent lower numbered link.
  - d. Towed sphere dry weight. (lb or N)
  - e. Towed sphere diameter. (in or cm)
- 7. NUMBER OF TOWED VEHICLES: Enter the total number of towed vehicles.
- 8. INDIVIDUAL TOWED VEHICLE DATA: For each towed vehicle, enter the following data:
  - a. Body number.
  - b. Towed body label: Up to 15 characters (A15 format).
  - c. Towed body reference point label: Up to 15 characters (A15 format).
  - d. Body number of adjacent lower numbered link.
  - e. Towed body dry weight. (lb or N)
  - f. Towed body axial length. (ft or m)
  - g. Towed body volume. ( $ft^3$  or  $m^3$ )
  - h. Towed body moments of inertia:  $I_{xx}$ ,  $I_{yy}$ ,  $I_{zz}$ . (slug-ft<sup>2</sup> or N-m<sup>2</sup>)
  - i. Towed body products of inertia:  $I_{xy}$ ,  $I_{xz}$ ,  $I_{yz}$ . (slug-ft<sup>2</sup> or N-m<sup>2</sup>)

j. Towed body mass center position vector: Enter the vehicle-fixed X, Y, and Z components of the position vector of the vehicle's mass center relative to cable attachment point. (ft or m)

k. Towed body buoyancy center position vector: Enter the vehiclefixed X, Y, and Z components of the position vector of the vehicle's buoyancy center relative to its mass center. (ft or m) 1. Towed body hydrodynamic center position vector: Enter the vehicle-fixed X, Y, and Z components of the position vector of the vehicle's hydrodynamic center relative to its mass center. (ft or m)

m. For analysis options 1 and 4, enter the following lines of data:

1) Steady-state configuration of the vehicle: Enter the three steady-state orientation angles (estimates for option 4). (deg)

2) Steady-state control surface angles: Enter the four steady-state angles of the control surfaces A and B, the rudder, and the sternplane. (deg)

3) Initial deviation from the steady-state configuration: Enter the deviations of the three vehicle orientation angles from their steady-state values. (deg)

4) Initial deviation of the link motion from zero: Enter the derivatives of the deviations of the three vehicle orientation angles. (deg/sec)

5) Increment of the vehicle configuration: Enter the increments of the three vehicle orientation angles used for calculating the linear equations of motion. (deg)

6) Increment of the vehicle motion: Enter the increments of the derivatives of the three vehicle orientation angles used for calculating the linear equations of motion. (deg/sec)

7) Increment of control surface angles: Enter the increments of the derivatives of the four vehicle control surface angles used for calculating the linear equations of motion. (deg)

n. For an analysis option 2 without closed-loop control, enter the following lines of data:

1) Initial configuration of the vehicle: Enter the initial values of the three orientation angles. (deg)

2) Initial motion of the vehicle: Enter the initial values of the first derivatives of the three orientation angles. (deg/sec)

3) Initial control surface angles: Enter the initial values of the angles of the four control surfaces A and B, the rudder, and the sternplane of the vehicle. (deg)

o. For an analysis option 2 with closed-loop control, enter the following lines of data:

1) Steady-state configuration of the vehicle: Enter the three steady-state orientation angles. (deg)

2) Steady-state control surface angles: Enter the steady-state values of the angles of the four control surfaces A and B, the rudder, and the sternplane. (deg)

3) Initial deviation from the steady-state configuration: Enter the deviations of the three orientation angles from their steady-state values. (deg)

4) Initial deviation of the vehicle motion from zero: Enter the derivatives of the deviations of the three orientation angles. (deg/sec)

p. For an analysis option 3, enter the following lines of data:

1) Steady-state configuration of the vehicle: Enter initial estimates of the three steady-state orientation angles. (deg)

2) Steady-state control surface angles: Enter the steady-state values of the angles of the four control surfaces A and B, the rudder, and the sternplane of the vehicle. (deg)

q. For an analysis option 5, enter the following lines of data:

1) Steady-state configuration of the vehicle: Enter initial estimates of the three steady-state orientation angles. (deg)

2) Steady-state control surface angles: Enter the steady-state values of the angles of the four control surfaces A and B, the rudder, and the sternplane. (deg)

3) Initial deviation from the steady-state configuration: Enter the deviations of the three orientation angles from their steady-state values. (deg)

4) Initial deviation of the vehicle motion from zero: Enter the derivatives of the deviations of the three orientation angles. (deg/sec)

r. Vehicle closed-loop control: If the closed-loop control option is specified, the user must indicate whether or not the vehicle is to use a control law. If the closed-loop control option is **not** specified, skip this input. Enter 1 if the towed vehicle contains active control surfaces piloted by a closed-loop control law. Enter 0 if no closed-loop control law is to be used for this vehicle. If a closed-loop control law is to be used, enter the following additional lines of data to define the form of the control law:

i) Number of active control surfaces

ii) Active control surfaces identifications: For each active control surface, enter its identifying integer:

1-bowplane A 2-bowplane B 3-rudder 4-sternplane

iii) Actuator Switches: On a single line, enter 1 or 0 for each active control surface indicating whether an actuator will be used (1) or not (0).

iv) Actuator Characteristics: For each act're control surface that is to use an actuator model, enter the following three lines of data:

Line 1: Natural frequency (Hz.) and damping ratio. Line 2: Minimum and maximum operating angles and mechanical backlash (deg).

Line 3: Minimum and maximum operating rates (deg/sec).

v) Number of towed body state variables

vi) State variable identifiers: For each state variable, enter its identifying integer:

1-yaw angle 2-pitch angle 3-roll angle 4-yaw rate 5-pitch rate 6-roll rate 7-depth 8-depth rate

1

vii) Noise Switches: On a single line, enter 1 or 0 for each state variable indicating whether noise will be added to that variable (1) or not (0).

viii) Noise Characteristics: For each state variable that is to have noise added, enter one line of data containing the standard deviation of the noise (units same as state variable) and its cut-off frequency (Hz.).

ix) Number of nonzero commanded deviation inputs

x) For each commanded input, enter the following lines of data:

1) Commanded input and specification mode identifiers:

Commanded Input	Specification Mode
1-yaw angle 2-pitch angle 3-roll angle 4-depth	1-precoded function 2-profile of data points

2) If precoded function is specified, enter constants  $f_0, A, b$ ,

p, and  $\phi$ . If profile of data points is specified, first enter the number of data points, then enter the data point pairs, each on single line. Each data point pair consists of a time value and the value of the commanded input at that time. Linear interpolation is used between the data values. (Angles in degrees; depth in ft or m)

s. Hydrodynamic coefficients for the towed body: Enter the 56 lines of hydrodynamic coefficients as follows:

Line 1: 
$$X'_{ii}$$
  $X'_{iv}$   $X'_{iq}$   
Line 2:  $X'_{uu}$   $X'_{uv}$   $X'_{uw}$   
Line 3:  $X'_{up}$   $X'_{uq}$   $X'_{uv}$   
Line 4:  $X'_{vv}$   $X'_{vw}$   
Line 5:  $X'_{vp}$   $X'_{vq}$   $X'_{vr}$   
Line 6:  $X'_{ww}$   
Line 7:  $X'_{wp}$   $X'_{wq}$   $X'_{wr}$   
Line 8:  $X'_{pp}$   $X'_{pq}$   $X'_{pr}$   
Line 9:  $X'_{qq}$   $X'_{qr}$   $X'_{rr}$   
Line 10:  $X'_{uu\delta_{i}}$   $X'_{uw\delta_{i}}$   $X'_{uq\delta_{i}}$ 

Line 12: 
$$X'_{uu\delta_{\lambda}\delta_{\lambda}}$$
  $X'_{uq\delta_{\lambda}\delta_{\lambda}}$   $X'_{qq\delta_{\lambda}\delta_{\lambda}}$   
Line 13:  $X'_{uu\delta_{\lambda}\delta_{\lambda}}$   $X'_{uw\delta_{\lambda}\delta_{\lambda}}$   $X'_{uq\delta_{\lambda}\delta_{\lambda}}$   
Line 14:  $X'_{ww\delta_{\lambda}\delta_{\lambda}}$   $X'_{wq\delta_{\lambda}\delta_{\lambda}}$   $X'_{qq\delta_{\lambda}\delta_{\lambda}}$   
Line 15:  $Y'_{\nu}$   $Y'_{p}$   $Y'_{r}$   
Line 16:  $Y'_{u\nu}$   $Y'_{up}$   $Y'_{ur}$   
Line 17:  $Y'_{wq}$   $Y'_{wp}$   
Line 18:  $Y'_{pq}$   $Y'_{qr}$   
Line 19:  $Y'_{uu\delta_{r}}$   $Y'_{uq\delta_{r}}$   $Y'_{qq\delta_{\lambda}}$   
Line 20:  $Z'_{\dot{u}}$   $Z'_{u\nu}$   $Z'_{uw}$   
Line 21:  $Z'_{uu}$   $Z'_{u\nu}$   $Z'_{uw}$   
Line 23:  $Z'_{\nu}$   $Z'_{u\mu}$   $Z'_{ur}$   
Line 23:  $Z'_{\nu}$   $Z'_{\nu q}$   
Line 24:  $Z'_{\nu p}$   $Z'_{\nu q}$   $Z'_{\nu r}$   
Line 25:  $Z'_{ww}$   
Line 26:  $Z'_{wp}$   $Z'_{wq}$   $Z'_{mr}$   
Line 27:  $Z'_{pp}$   $Z'_{pq}$   $Z'_{pr}$   
Line 28:  $Z'_{qq}$   $Z'_{qr}$   $Z'_{rr}$   
Line 29:  $Z'_{uu\delta_{\lambda}}$   $Z'_{uw\delta_{\lambda}}$   $Z'_{uq\delta_{\lambda}}$   
Line 30:  $Z'_{ww\delta_{\lambda}}$   $Z'_{uw\delta_{\lambda}\delta_{\lambda}}$   $Z'_{uq\delta_{\lambda}\delta_{\lambda}}$   
Line 31:  $Z'_{uu\delta_{\lambda}\delta_{\lambda}}$   $Z'_{uq\delta_{\lambda}\delta_{\lambda}}$   $Z'_{qq\delta_{\lambda}\delta_{\lambda}}$ 

Line 33: 
$$K'_{\nu}$$
  $K'_{\rho}$   $K'_{r}$   
Line 34:  $K'_{uv}$   $K'_{up}$   $K'_{ur}$   
Line 35:  $K'_{wq}$   $K'_{wp}$   $K'_{wr}$   
Line 36:  $K'_{pq}$   $K'_{qr}$   
Line 37:  $K'_{uu\delta_r}$   $K'_{uq\delta_r}$   $K'_{qq\delta_r}$ 

Line 38: 
$$M'_{ii}$$
  $M'_{vi}$   $M'_{\dot{q}}$   
Line 39:  $M'_{uu}$   $M'_{uv}$   $M'_{uw}$   
Line 40:  $M'_{up}$   $M'_{uq}$   $M'_{ur}$ 

Line 41: 
$$M'_{vv}$$
  $M'_{vn}$   
Line 42:  $M'_{vp}$   $M'_{vq}$   $M'_{vr}$   
Line 43:  $M'_{ww}$   
Line 44:  $M'_{wp}$   $M'_{wq}$   $M'_{wr}$   
Line 45:  $M'_{pp}$   $M'_{pq}$   $M'_{pr}$   
Line 46:  $M'_{qq}$   $M'_{qr}$   $M'_{rr}$   
Line 47:  $M'_{uu\delta_{\lambda}}$   $M'_{uv\delta_{\lambda}}$   $M'_{uq\delta_{\lambda}}$   
Line 48:  $M'_{ww\delta_{\lambda}}$   $M'_{uq\delta_{\lambda}\delta_{\lambda}}$   $M'_{qq\delta_{\lambda}\delta_{\lambda}}$   
Line 49:  $M'_{uu\delta_{\lambda}\delta_{\lambda}}$   $M'_{uq\delta_{\lambda}\delta_{\lambda}}$   $M'_{qq\delta_{\lambda}\delta_{\lambda}}$   
Line 50:  $M'_{uu\delta_{\lambda}\delta_{\lambda}}$   $M'_{wq\delta_{\lambda}\delta_{\lambda}}$   $M'_{qq\delta_{\lambda}\delta_{\lambda}}$ 

Line 52: 
$$N'_{\nu}$$
  $N'_{p}$   $N'_{r}$   
Line 53:  $N'_{\mu\nu}$   $N'_{\mu p}$   $N'_{\mu r}$   
Line 54:  $N'_{\mu q}$   $N'_{\mu p}$   $N'_{\mu r}$   
Line 55:  $N'_{pq}$   $N'_{qr}$   
Line 56:  $N'_{\mu\mu\delta r}$   $N'_{qq\delta r}$   $N'_{qq\delta r}$ 

9. CONTROL GAIN MATRICES: For analysis type 2 with closed-loop control, enter the control gain matrices:

a. Feedback control gain matrix: Enter one row of the feedback gain matrix on each data line.

b. Feedforward control gain matrix: Enter one row of the feedforward gain matrix on each data line.

If these values multiply an angular deviation, they are unitless; if they multiply an angular rate deviation, they have the units of seconds (s); if they multiply a depth deviation, they have the units of  $ft^{-1}$ ; and, if they multiply a depth rate deviation, they have the units of s/ft.

#### 10. MOTION OF THE MEAN SHIP FRAME AND SYSTEM REFERENCE POINT:

a. For analysis options 1 and 4 enter the following lines of data:

1) Steady-state mean ship frame motion: Enter the steady-state ship speed and turning rate. (ft/sec or m/sec; deg/sec)

2) Steady-state system reference point position: Enter the forward, starboard, and downward coordinates of the steadystate position vector of the system reference point relative to the mean ship frame. (ft or m)

3) For analysis option 4 only, enter the maximum number of system iterations (minimum of 6) and the maximum system error allowed for the calculation of the steady-state configuration of the system.

4) System tow point as external input: Enter 1 to include the tow point motion as an external input; enter 0 **not** to include this option. If this option is to be included, enter the following lines of input:

Line 1: Enter the increments in the forward, starboard, and downward displacements of the system reference point relative to the mean ship frame use for calculating the linear equations of motion. (ft or m)

Line 2: Enter the increments in the derivatives of the forward, starboard, and downward displacements of the system reference point relative to the mean ship frame used for calculating the linear equations of motion. (ft/sec or m/sec)

Line 3: Enter the increments in the second derivatives forward, starboard, and downward displacements of the system reference point relative to the mean ship frame used

for calculating the linear equations of motion. (ft/sec<sup>2</sup> or m/sec<sup>2</sup>)

b. For analysis options 3 and 5, enter steady-state data on three lines:

- Line 1: Steady-state ship speed and turning rate. (ft/sec or m/sec; deg/sec)
- Line 2: Steady-state forward, starboard, and downward displacements of the system reference point Q relative to the mean ship frame. (ft or m)
- Line 3: Maximum number of system iterations and error allowed for calculation of steady-state configuration of the system.

c. For analysis options 2 and 5, enter data only for the non-zero variables among the following:

Identifying Integer	Variable
1	Forward displacement of system reference point Q relative to the mean ship frame (ft or m)
2	Starboard displacement of system reference point Q relative to the mean ship frame (ft or m)
3	Downward (vertical) displacement of system reference point Q relative to the mean ship frame (ft or m)
4	Forward speed of the mean ship frame (ft/sec or m/sec)
5	Turning angle of the mean ship frame relative to the inertial frame (positive for a star- board turn) (deg)

To do this, enter the following data:

1) Enter the number of variables with non-zero values.

2) For each non-zero variable:

i) Enter its identifying integer; then enter: 1 for a precoded function; 2 for an acceleration profile.

ii) If a precoded function is selected, enter the necessary constants.

For variables 1-3, enter  $f_0$ , A, b, p,  $\phi$ , and m. For variables 4 and 5, enter  $f_0$ , A, b, p, and  $\phi$ .

iii) If an acceleration profile is selected, enter the number of data points in the profile on the first line. Next, enter a set of data lines, one for each of the data pairs. The first line of this set contains the: 1) initial time; 2) initial acceleration; 3) initial velocity; and 4) initial displacement value. Each subsequent line contains the; 1) time; and 2) corresponding acceleration value. Note that the acceleration represents the second derivative of variables 1-3 and 5 and the first derivative of variable 4; all of these are acceleration values.

### 11. INTEGRATION OPTION AND PARAMETERS:

a. Integration option:

Enter 1 for the fixed-step Runge-Kutta integrator. Enter 2 for the fixed-step predictor-corrector integrator.

b. Integration parameters: Enter the: 1) starting time; 2) ending time; and 3) time increment. All input in seconds.

### 12. CONTROL LAW SAMPLING TIME:

If the closed-loop control option has been selected, enter the time increment at which the control law is to be sampled. For best operation of DYNTOCABS, this number should be an integer multiple of the integration step size. (seconds)

#### 13. OUTPUT OPTIONS:

- a. Enter print time increment. (seconds)
- b. Output option:

Enter 0 to print all data

Enter 1 to print all except the second derivatives of the orientation angles of the cable links and the accelerations of the reference points of the cable links and towed vehicles.

Enter 2 to print as in option 1 except first derivatives of the orientation angles of the cable links and the velocities of the reference points of the cable links and towed vehicles.

Enter 3 to print as in option 2 except for the orientation angles of and the tensions in the cable links.

Enter 4 to print as in option 3 except for the positions of the reference points and towed vehicles.

c. Enter the number of integration steps between each set of output written to the plot file.
APPENDIX B

HYDRODYNAMIC LOADS ON TOWED VEHICLES

1

## **APPENDIX B**

## HYDRODYNAMIC LOADS ON TOWED VEHICLES

This appendix gives the form of the hydrodynamic loads on towed vehicles as calculated in the present version of DYNTOCABS. In these equations, note that: 1)  $\rho$  represents the mass density of the fluid; 2) *l* represents the axial length of the vehicle; 3) *u*, *v*, and *w* represent the axial, lateral, and normal components of the velocity of the vehicle; 4) *p*, *q*, and *r* represent the axial, lateral, and normal components of the angular velocity of the vehicle; 5)  $\delta_r$ , and  $\delta_s$ represent the angular deflections of the rudder and sternplane in radians; and 6) the X', Y', Z', K', M', and N' coefficients with the appropriate subscripts represent the user-supplied hydrodynamic coefficients.

Axial Force:

$$F_{axial} = \frac{\rho}{2}l^{2} \{X'_{uu}u^{2} + X'_{uv}uv + X'_{uv}uw + X'_{uv}v^{2} + X'_{vv}vw + X'_{uv}v^{2} + X'_{uu\delta_{i}}u^{2}\delta_{s} + X'_{uu\delta_{i}}u^{2}\delta_{s} + X'_{uv\delta_{i}}uw\delta_{s} + X'_{uv\delta_{i}}w^{2}\delta_{s} + X'_{uu\delta_{i}\delta_{i}}u^{2}\delta_{r}^{2} + X'_{uu\delta_{i}\delta_{i}}u^{2}\delta_{s}^{2} + X'_{uv\delta_{i}\delta_{i}}uw\delta_{s}^{2} + X'_{uv\delta_{i}\delta_{i}}w^{2}\delta_{s}^{2}\} + \frac{\rho}{2}l^{3} \{X'_{uu}u + X'_{w}w + X'_{uv}ur + X'_{vp}vp + X'_{uq}vq + X'_{up}up + X'_{uq}uq + X'_{uv}ur + X'_{vp}vp + X'_{uq}\delta_{i}uq\delta_{s} + X'_{uq\delta_{i}\delta_{i}}uq\delta_{s} + X'_{uq\delta_{i}\delta_{i}}uq\delta_{s}^{2} + X'_{uq\delta_{i}\delta_{i}}uq\delta_{s}^{2} + X'_{uq\delta_{i}\delta_{i}}wq\delta_{s}^{2}\} + \frac{\rho}{2}l^{4} \{X'_{q}\dot{q} + X'_{pp}p^{2} + X'_{pq}pq + X'_{pr}pr + X'_{qq}\delta_{i}q^{2}\delta_{s}^{2}\}$$

Lateral Force:

$$F_{lawral} = \frac{\rho}{2}l^{2} \left\{ Y'_{uv}uv + Y'_{uu\delta_{r}}u^{2}\delta_{r} \right\} + \frac{\rho}{2}l^{3} \left\{ Y'_{v}\dot{v} + Y'_{up}up + Y'_{ur}ur + Y'_{vq}vq + Y'_{wp}wp + Y'_{uq\delta_{r}}uq\delta_{r} \right\} + \frac{\rho}{2}l^{4} \left\{ Y'_{p}\dot{p} + Y'_{r}\dot{r} + Y'_{pq}pq + Y'_{qr}qr + Y'_{qq\delta_{r}}q^{2}\delta_{r} \right\}$$

Normal Force:

.

$$\begin{split} F_{normal} &= \frac{\rho}{2} l^2 \{ Z'_{uu} u^2 + Z'_{uv} uv + Z'_{uv} uw + Z'_{vv} v^2 + \\ Z'_{vv} vw + Z'_{vvv} w^2 + Z'_{uu\delta_i} u^2 \delta_s + Z'_{uv\delta_i} uw \delta_s + \\ Z'_{vvv\delta_i} w^2 \delta_s + Z'_{uu\delta_i} u^2 \delta_s^2 + Z'_{uv\delta_i} \delta_i uw \delta_s^2 + Z'_{vvv\delta_i} \delta_i w^2 \delta_s^2 \} + \\ \frac{\rho}{2} l^3 \{ Z'_{u} \dot{u} + Z'_{w} \dot{w} + \\ Z'_{up} up + Z'_{uq} uq + Z'_{uv} ur + Z'_{vp} vp + Z'_{uq} vq + \\ Z'_{vr} vr + Z'_{wp} wp + Z'_{wq} wq + Z'_{wr} wr + Z'_{uq\delta_i} uq \delta_s + \\ Z'_{vq} \delta_i wq \delta_s + Z'_{uq\delta_i\delta_i} uq \delta_s^2 + Z'_{wq\delta_i\delta_i} wq \delta_s^2 \} + \\ \frac{\rho}{2} l^4 \{ Z'_{q} \dot{q} + Z'_{pp} p^2 + Z'_{pq} pq + Z'_{pr} pr + Z'_{qq} q^2 + Z'_{qr} qr + \\ Z'_{rr} r^2 + Z'_{qq\delta_i} q^2 \delta_s \} \end{split}$$

Roll Moment:

$$\begin{split} M_{roll} &= \frac{\rho}{2} l^{3} \left\{ K'_{uv} uv + K'_{uu\delta_{r}} u^{2} \delta_{r} \right\} + \\ &= \frac{\rho}{2} l^{4} \left\{ K'_{v} \dot{v} + K'_{up} up + K'_{ur} ur + K'_{vq} vq + K'_{wp} wp + \\ &= K'_{wr} wr + K'_{uq\delta_{r}} uq \delta_{r} \right\} + \\ &= \frac{\rho}{2} l^{5} \left\{ K'_{\dot{p}} \dot{p} + K'_{r} \dot{r} + K'_{pq} pq + K'_{qr} qr + K'_{qq\delta_{r}} q^{2} \delta_{r} \right\} \end{split}$$

Pitch Moment:

$$\begin{split} M_{pitch} &= \frac{\rho}{2} l^{3} \{ M'_{uu} u^{2} + M'_{uv} uv + M'_{uw} uw + M'_{w} v^{2} + M'_{vw} vw + \\ M'_{ww} w^{2} + M'_{uu\delta_{i}} u^{2} \delta_{s} + M'_{uw\delta_{i}} uw \delta_{s} + M'_{ww\delta_{i}} w^{2} \delta_{s} + \\ M'_{uu\delta_{i}\delta_{r}} u^{2} \delta_{r}^{2} + M'_{uu\delta_{i}\delta_{i}} u^{2} \delta_{s}^{2} + M'_{uw\delta_{i}\delta_{i}} uw \delta_{s}^{2} + M'_{ww\delta_{i}\delta_{i}} w^{2} \delta_{s}^{2} \} + \\ \frac{\rho}{2} l^{4} \{ M'_{u} \dot{u} + M'_{w} \dot{w} + \\ M'_{up} up + M'_{uq} uq + M'_{ur} ur + M'_{vp} vp + M'_{uq} vq + \\ M'_{vr} vr + M'_{wp} wp + M'_{wq} wq + M'_{wr} wr + M'_{uq\delta_{i}\delta_{i}} uq \delta_{s} + \\ M'_{uq\delta_{i}} wq \delta_{s} + M'_{uq\delta_{i}\delta_{i}} uq \delta_{r}^{2} + M'_{uq\delta_{i}\delta_{i}} uq \delta_{s}^{2} + M'_{uq\delta_{i}\delta_{i}} wq \delta_{s}^{2} \} + \\ \frac{\rho}{2} l^{5} \{ M'_{q} \dot{q} + M'_{pp} p^{2} + M'_{pq} pq + M'_{pr} pr + M'_{qq} \delta_{i}\delta_{i}q^{2} \delta_{s}^{2} \} \end{split}$$

•

Yaw Moment:

$$\begin{split} M_{yaw} &= \frac{\rho}{2} l^{3} \left\{ N'_{wv} uv + N'_{uu\delta_{r}} u^{2} \delta_{r} \right\} + \\ &= \frac{\rho}{2} l^{4} \left\{ N'_{v} \dot{v} + N'_{up} up + N'_{ur} ur + N'_{vq} vq + N'_{wp} wp + \\ &= N'_{wr} wr + N'_{uq\delta_{r}} uq \delta_{r} \right\} + \\ &= \frac{\rho}{2} l^{5} \left\{ N'_{\dot{p}} \dot{p} + N'_{\dot{r}} \dot{r} + N'_{pq} pq + N'_{qr} qr + N'_{qq\delta_{r}} q^{2} \delta_{r} \right\} \end{split}$$

## **DISTRIBUTION LIST**

<b>Commander, Naval Sea Systems Command,</b> Naval Sea Systems Command Headquarters, Washington, DC 20362-5101	<u>Copv No.</u>
(Library) (PMS 407B, D. Grembi)	1 2
Chief of Naval Operations, Navy Department, Washington, DC 20350-2000	3
Commander, David Taylor Research Center, Bethesda, MD 20084-5000	
(Library) (Code 1541, R. Vinutson) (Code 1541, Dr. P. Rispin)	4 5 6
<b>Commanding Officer, Naval Underwater Systems Center,</b> Newport, RI 02840	
(Library) (Code 3342, N. Toplosky)	7 8
Commanding Officer, Naval Oceans Systems Center, San Diego, CA 92132 (Library)	9
Commanding Officer, Naval Research Laboratory,	-
Washington, DC 20375 (Library) (Dr. H. Whang)	10 11
Commander, Naval Surface Weapons Center, White Oak, Silver Spring, MD 20910 (Library)	12
Commander, Naval Surface Weapons Center, Dahlgren Laboratory, Dahlgren, VA 22448 (Library)	13
Superintendent, Naval Academy, Annapolis, MD 21402-5000 (Library)	14
Superintendent, Naval Postgraduate School, Monterey, CA 93943 (Library)	15
Chief of Naval Research (Code 20), 800 North Quincy Street, Arlington, VA 22217-5000 (Code 235, W. Ching)	16
Commander, Naval Weapons Center, China Lake, CA 93555-6001 (Library)	17

## NCSC TM 550-90

Commander, Naval Air Systems Command, Naval Air Systems Command Headquarters, Washington, DC 20361-5101	
(Library) (PMA 210C, H Scheetz)	18 19
Commanding Officer, Naval Civil Engineering Lab,	
(Library) (Code L40PM, D. Shields)	20 21
Commander, Mine Warfare Command, Naval Base, Charleston, SC 29408-5500	
(Library) (Code N4A, G. Pollitt)	22 23
Administrator, Defense Technical Information Center, Cameron Station, Alexandria, VA 22304-6145	24-25